UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2009
or
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OI 1934
For the transition period from to

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER: 001-33988

Graphic Packaging Holding Company

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware26-0405422(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)(I.R.S. employer identification no.)

814 Livingston Court
Marietta, Georgia
(Address of principal executive offices)

(770) 644-3000

30067

(Zip Code)

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \square No \square

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Yes □ No □

Indicate by check mark	whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, a	an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a small	aller reporting company. See the definitions of
"large accelerated filer," "	accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company"	'in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):	
Large accelerated filer	Accelerated filer ☑	Non-accelerated filer □	Smaller Reporting Company □
		(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)	

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes \square No \boxtimes

As of July 31, 2009, there were 343,242,186 shares of the registrant's Common Stock, par value \$0.01 per share, outstanding.

Information Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements regarding the expectations of Graphic Packaging Holding Company ("GPHC" and, together with its subsidiaries, the "Company"), including, but not limited to, statements regarding the effect of contractual price escalators and price increases for coated paperboard and cartons, inflationary pressures, cost savings from its continuous improvement programs, capital spending, depreciation and amortization, interest expense, debt reduction and pension plan contributions in this report constitute "forward-looking statements" as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are based on currently available operating, financial and competitive information and are subject to various risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from the Company's historical experience and its present expectations. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the Company's substantial amount of debt, inflation of and volatility in raw material and energy costs, continuing pressure for lower cost products, the Company's ability to implement its business strategies, including productivity initiatives and cost reduction plans, currency movements and other risks of conducting business internationally, and the impact of regulatory and litigation matters, including the continued availability of the alternative fuel tax credits and those that impact the Company's ability to protect and use its intellectual property. Undue reliance should not be placed on such forward-looking statements, as such statements speak only as of the date on which they are made and the Company undertakes no obligation to update such statements. Additional information regarding these and other risks is contained in Part I, Item 1A., "Risk Factors" of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K and in other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION	4
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	4
ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS	21
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK	33
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES	33
PART II — OTHER INFORMATION	33
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	33
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS	33
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS	33
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS	34
SIGNATURES	35
EX-10.1	
EX-31.1	
EX-31.2	
EX-32.1	
EX-32.2	
3	

PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GRAPHIC PACKAGING HOLDING COMPANY CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

In millions, except share and per share amounts	June 30, 2009	December 31, 2008
m mutons, except share and per share amounts	(Unaudited)	2008
ASSETS	(Cinadanea)	
Current Assets:	4.160.6	A 170 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ 160.6	\$ 170.1
Receivables, Net	406.8	369.6
Inventories, Net	473.0	532.0
Other Current Assets	62.3	56.9
Total Current Assets	1,102.7	1,128.6
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net	1,870.0	1,935.1
Goodwill	1,209.0	1,204.8
Intangible Assets, Net	641.4	664.6
Other Assets	48.2	50.0
Total Assets	\$ 4,871.3	\$ 4,983.1
LIABILITIES		
Current Liabilities:		
Short Term Debt and Current Portion of Long-Term Debt	\$ 27.6	\$ 18.6
Accounts Payable	299.9	333.4
Compensation and Employee Benefits	100.0	87.2
Interest Payable	47.8	57.8
Other Accrued Liabilities	168.7	188.6
Total Current Liabilities	644.0	685.6
Long-Term Debt	3,040.7	3,165.2
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities	210.5	187.8
Accrued Pension and Postretirement Benefits	378.9	375.8
Other Noncurrent Liabilities	47.8	43.5
Total Liabilities	4,321.9	4,457.9
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY		
Preferred Stock, par value \$.01 per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding	_	_
Common Stock, par value \$.01 per share; 1,000,000,000 shares authorized; 343,242,186 and 342,522,470 shares issued		
and outstanding at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively	3.4	3.4
Capital in Excess of Par Value	1,957.1	1,955.4
Accumulated Deficit	(1,084.0)	(1,075.4)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss	(327.1)	(358.2)
Fotal Shareholders' Equity	549.4	525.2
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity	\$ 4,871.3	\$ 4,983.1

GRAPHIC PACKAGING HOLDING COMPANY CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

	Three Moi June	nths Ended e 30,	Six Mont	
In millions, except per share amounts	2009	2008	2009	2008
Net Sales	\$1,043.8	\$1,141.7	\$2,063.0	\$1,866.0
Cost of Sales	901.7	998.1	1,794.6	1,635.8
Selling, General and Administrative	123.7	89.7	213.8	151.0
Research, Development and Engineering	2.2	1.9	3.6	3.9
Other Income, Net	(71.8)	(9.9)	(70.1)	(12.1)
Income from Operations	88.0	61.9	121.1	87.4
Interest Income	0.1	0.4	0.2	0.5
Interest Expense	(52.6)	(57.5)	(104.9)	(100.3)
Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt	(6.1)	_	(6.1)	_
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Earnings of Affiliates	29.4	4.8	10.3	(12.4)
Income Tax Expense	(10.1)	(9.6)	(19.4)	(16.0)
Income (Loss) before Equity in Net Earnings of Affiliates	19.3	(4.8)	(9.1)	(28.4)
Equity in Net Earnings of Affiliates	0.3	0.5	0.5	0.8
Net Income (Loss)	\$ 19.6	\$ (4.3)	\$ (8.6)	\$ (27.6)
	0.05	. (0.04)	. (0.0 2)	. (0.10)
Income (Loss) Per Share — Basic	\$ 0.06	\$ (0.01)	\$ (0.03)	\$ (0.10)
Income (Loss) Per Share — Diluted	\$ 0.06	\$ (0.01)	\$ (0.03)	\$ (0.10)
Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding — Basic	343.0	342.9	342.8	288.7
Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding — Diluted	344.3	342.9	342.8	288.7

GRAPHIC PACKAGING HOLDING COMPANY CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

		nths Ended ne 30,
In millions	2009	2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:		
Net Loss	\$ (8.6)	\$ (27.6)
Noncash Items Included in Net Loss:		
Depreciation and Amortization	151.8	117.7
Write-off of Debt Issuance Costs on Early Extinguishment of Debt	1.3	_
Deferred Income Taxes	20.0	13.2
Amount of Postemployment Expense Greater (Less) Than Funding	24.1	(20.6)
Amortization of Deferred Debt Issuance Costs	4.1	3.7
Other, Net	3.8	14.4
Changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities	(22.4)	(84.8)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	174.1	16.0
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		
Capital Spending	(66.4)	(83.3)
Acquisition Costs Related to Altivity	_	(29.8)
Cash Acquired Related to Altivity	_	60.2
Proceeds from Sale of Assets, Net of Selling Costs	9.8	0.7
Other, Net	(0.7)	(2.3)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities	(57.3)	(54.5)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt, Net of Original Issue Discount	238.4	1,200.0
Payments on Debt	(225.3)	(1,174.5)
Borrowings under Revolving Credit Facilities	100.6	381.8
Payments on Revolving Credit Facilities	(227.4)	(345.9)
Debt Issuance Costs and Early Tender Premiums	(11.2)	(16.3)
Other, Net	(1.4)	(0.6)
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities	(126.3)	44.5
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash	_	0.5
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents	(9.5)	6.5
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period	170.1	9.3
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD	\$ 160.6	\$ 15.8

GRAPHIC PACKAGING HOLDING COMPANY CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Unaudited)

			Capital in		Accumulated Other	
	Common St		Excess of	Accumulated	Comprehensive	Comprehensive
In millions, except share amounts	Shares	Amount	Par Value	Deficit	Income (Loss)	Income (Loss)
Balances at December 31, 2007	200,978,569	\$2.0	\$ 1,191.6	\$ (975.7)	\$ (73.9)	
Net Loss		_	_	(99.7)	_	\$ (99.7)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):						
Derivative Instruments Loss	_	_	_	_	(60.6)	(60.6)
Pension Benefit Plans	_	_	_	_	(212.2)	(212.2)
Postretirement Benefit Plans	_	_	_	_	2.4	2.4
Postemployment Benefit Plans	_	_	_	_	1.2	1.2
Currency Translation Adjustment	_	_	_	_	(15.1)	(15.1)
Total Comprehensive Loss	_	_	_	_	_	\$(384.0)
Common Stock Issued for Acquisition	139,445,038	1.4	761.4	_	_	` ′
Issuance of Shares for Stock-Based						
Awards	2,098,863	_	2.4	_	_	
Balances at December 31, 2008	342,522,470	\$3.4	\$ 1,955.4	\$ (1,075.4)	\$(358.2)	
Net Loss	_	_	_	(8.6)	_	\$ (8.6)
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):						
Derivative Instruments Income	_	_	_	_	22.3	22.3
Pension Benefit Plans	_	_	_	_	10.9	10.9
Postretirement Benefit Plans	_	_	_	_	(0.4)	(0.4)
Postemployment Benefit Plans	_	_	_	_	0.3	0.3
Currency Translation Adjustment	_	_	_	_	(2.0)	(2.0)
Total Comprehensive Income	_	_	_	_	_	\$ 22.5
Issuance of Shares for Stock-Based						
Awards	719,716	_	1.7	_	_	
Balances at June 30, 2009	343,242,186	\$3.4	\$ 1,957.1	\$ (1,084.0)	\$(327.1)	

GRAPHIC PACKAGING HOLDING COMPANY NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

NOTE 1 — NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business

Graphic Packaging Holding Company ("GPHC" and, together with its subsidiaries, the "Company") is a leading provider of packaging solutions for a wide variety of products to multinational food, beverage and other consumer products companies. The Company is the largest North American producer of folding cartons and holds a leading market position in coated unbleached kraft paperboard, coated-recycled boxboard and multi-wall bags. The Company's customers include some of the most widely recognized companies in the world. The Company strives to provide its customers with packaging solutions designed to deliver marketing and performance benefits at a competitive cost by capitalizing on its low-cost paperboard mills and converting plants, proprietary carton and packaging designs, and its commitment to customer service.

GPHC became a new publicly-traded parent company when, on March 10, 2008, the businesses of Graphic Packaging Corporation ("GPC") and Altivity Packaging, LLC ("Altivity") were combined through a series of transactions. All of the equity interests in Altivity's parent company were contributed to GPHC in exchange for 139,445,038 shares of GPHC's common stock, par value \$0.01. Stockholders of GPC received one share of GPHC common stock for each share of GPC common stock held immediately prior to the transactions. Subsequently, all of the equity interests in Altivity's parent company were contributed to GPHC's primary operating company, Graphic Packaging International, Inc. ("GPII"). Together, these transactions are referred to herein as the "Altivity Transaction."

For accounting purposes, the Altivity Transaction was accounted for as a purchase by GPHC under the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 141, "Business Combinations," ("SFAS 141"). Under the purchase method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of Altivity were recorded, as of the date of the closing of the Altivity Transaction, at their respective fair values and added to those of GPII. The difference between the purchase price and the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Altivity was recorded as goodwill. The historical financial statements of GPHC. The accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2008 includes three months and approximately three weeks of Altivity's results and six months of GPC's results.

On March 5, 2008, the United States Department of Justice issued a Consent Decree that required the divesture of two mills, as a condition of the Altivity Transaction. On July 8, 2008, GPII signed an agreement with an affiliate of Sun Capital Partners, Inc. to sell two coated-recycled boxboard mills as required by the Consent Decree. The sale of the mills was completed on September 17, 2008. The mills that were sold are located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and in Wabash, Indiana.

GPHC and GPC conduct no significant business and have no independent assets or operations other than GPHC's ownership of GPC and GPC's ownership of GPII and its subsidiaries. GPHC and GPC fully and unconditionally guarantee substantially all of GPII's debt.

Basis of Presentation

The Company's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements include all subsidiaries in which the Company has the ability to exercise direct or indirect control over operating and financial policies. Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.

In the Company's opinion, the accompanying financial statements contain all normal recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods. The Company's year end Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet data was derived from audited financial statements. The accompanying unaudited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X and do not include all the information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for complete financial statements. Therefore, these financial statements should be read in conjunction with GPHC's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. In addition, the preparation of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates and changes in these statements are recorded as known.

We have adopted SFAS No. 165, "Subsequent Events," ("SFAS 165") effective with the quarter ended June 30, 2009 and have evaluated for disclosure subsequent events through August 5, 2009, the date of issuance of the Company's financial statements.

For a summary of the Company's significant accounting policies, please refer to GPHC's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements," ("SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP") requiring use of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about such fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ("FSP") No. FAS 157-1, "Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13," ("FSP 157-1"). FSP 157-1 excludes certain leasing transactions accounted for under FASB Statement No. 13, "Accounting for Leases," from the scope of SFAS 157.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 157-2, "Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157," ("FSP 157-2"). FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years, for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). The Company adopted SFAS 157 as of January 1, 2008, related to financial assets and financial liabilities, and as of January 1, 2009, related to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities. See Note 9 — Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement. The adoption of SFAS 157 did not have a significant impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 107-1 and Accounting Principles Board Opinion ("APB") 28-1, "Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments," ("FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1") which is effective for interim periods ending after June 15, 2009. FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1 increase the frequency of fair value disclosures required by SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments." FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1 require fair value disclosures on a quarterly basis for any financial instruments that are not currently reflected on the balance sheet at fair value. Prior to the issuance of FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1, fair value of these assets and liabilities were only required to be disclosed once a year. The Company's adoption of FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1 did not have an impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. See Note 9 — Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), "Business Combinations," ("SFAS 141R") which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. SFAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree; recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase; and determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. The Company will assess the impact of adoption when a business combination arises.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 141(R)-1, "Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in a Business Combination That Arise from Contingencies," ("FSP 141(R)-1"). FSP 141(R)-1 is effective for assets or liabilities arising from contingencies in business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. FSP 141(R)-1 amends and clarifies SFAS 141R to address application issues raised by preparers, auditors, and members of the legal profession on initial recognition and measurement, subsequent measurement and accounting, and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in a business combination. The Company will assess the impact of adoption when assets or liabilities arising from contingencies are acquired in a business combination.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an Amendment of ARB No. 51," ("SFAS 160") which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. SFAS 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin 51 ("ARB 51") to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It also amends certain of ARB 51's consolidation procedures for consistency with the requirements of SFAS 141R. The adoption of SFAS 160 did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, 'Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133,' ('SFAS 161') which is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. SFAS 161 requires enhanced disclosures of derivative instruments and hedging activities. These requirements include the disclosure of the fair values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in a tabular format. See Note 9 — Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement. The adoption of SFAS 161 did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 142-3, "Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets," ("FSP 142-3"). FSP 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," ("SFAS 142"). The intent of FSP 142-3 is to improve the consistency between the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset under SFAS 141R and other U.S. GAAP. FSP 142-3 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company will assess the impact of adoption when additional intangible assets are acquired or recognized.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 132 (R)-1, "Employers' Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets," ("FSP 132 (R)-1") which is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2009. FSP 132 (R)-1 requires additional disclosures regarding plan assets of defined benefit pension or other postretirement plans. The required disclosures include a description of investment policies and strategies, the fair value of each major category of plan assets, the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of plan assets, the effect of fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs on changes in plan assets, and the significant concentrations of risk within plan assets. The adoption of FSP 132 (R)-1 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS 165 which is effective for interim or annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. SFAS 165 establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. Additionally, SFAS 165 requires disclosure of the date through which an entity has evaluated subsequent events and the basis for that date, that is, whether that date represents the date the financial statements were issued or were available to be issued. The adoption of SFAS 165 did not have an impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, "The FASB Accounting Standards Codification TM and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles," ("SFAS 168"). SFAS 168 replaces SFAS No. 162, "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles," and establishes the "FASB Accounting Standards Codification TM" (the "Codification") as the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, except for rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under authority of federal securities laws, which are sources of authoritative U.S. GAAP for SEC registrants. SFAS 168 is effective for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. The adoption of SFAS 168 will not have an impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 2 — ALTIVITY TRANSACTION

On March 10, 2008, the businesses of GPC and Altivity were combined in a transaction accounted for under SFAS 141. Altivity was the largest privately-held producer of folding cartons and a market leader in all of its major businesses, including coated-recycled boxboard, multi-wall bag and specialty packaging. Altivity operated recycled boxboard mills and consumer product packaging facilities in North America.

The Company determined that the relative outstanding share ownership, voting rights, and the composition of the governing body and senior management positions required GPC to be the acquiring entity for accounting purposes, resulting in the historical financial statements of GPC becoming the historical financial statements of the Company. Under the purchase method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of Altivity were recorded, as of the date of the closing of the Altivity Transaction, at their respective fair values and added to those of GPII. The purchase price for the acquisition was based on the average closing price of the Company's common stock on the NYSE for two days prior to, including, and two days subsequent to the public announcement of the transaction of \$5.47 per share and capitalized transaction costs. The purchase price has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based

on the estimated fair values at the date of the Altivity Transaction. The final purchase price allocation is as follows:

In millions	
Purchase Price	\$ 762.8
Acquisition Costs	30.3
Assumed Debt	1,167.6
Total Purchase Consideration	\$1,960.7
In millions	
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ 60.2
Receivables, Net	181.2
Inventories	265.0
Prepaids	13.1
Property, Plant and Equipment	636.7
Intangible Assets	561.1
Other Assets	4.5
Total Assets Acquired	1,721.8
Current Liabilities, Excluding Current Portion of Long-Term Debt	256.0
Pension and Postemployment Benefits	35.3
Other Noncurrent Liabilities	40.1
Total Liabilities Assumed	331.4
Net Assets Acquired	1,390.4
Goodwill	570.3
Total Estimated Fair Value of Net Assets Acquired	\$1,960.7

The Company has plans to close certain facilities of the acquired company and has established restructuring reserves that are considered liabilities assumed in the Altivity Transaction. See Note 3 – Restructuring Reserves.

The excess of the purchase price over the aggregate fair value of net assets acquired was allocated to goodwill. Management believes that the portion of the purchase price attributable to goodwill represents benefits expected as a result of the acquisition, including i) significant cost-reduction opportunities and synergies by combining sales and support functions and eliminating duplicate corporate functions, ii) diversifying the Company's product line and providing new opportunities for top-line growth, which will allow the Company to compete effectively in the global packaging market, and iii) expansion of the Company's manufacturing system to include expanded folding carton converting operations, multi-wall bag facilities, flexible packaging facilities, ink manufacturing facilities and label facilities.

The following table shows the allocation of goodwill by segment:

	Paperboard	Multi-wall	Specialty	
In millions	Packaging	Bag	Packaging	Total
Goodwill	\$ 411.0	\$ 61.9	\$ 97.4	\$570.3

The Company expects to deduct approximately \$430 million of goodwill for tax purposes.

The following table summarizes acquired intangibles:

In millions	
Customer Relationships	\$546.4
Non-Compete Agreements	8.2
Trademarks and Patents	7.5
Leases and Supply Contracts	(1.0)
Total Estimated Fair Market Value of Intangible Assets	\$561.1

The fair value of intangible assets will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful life of 17 years for customer relationships, four years for trademarks and patents, and the remaining contractual period for the non-compete, lease and supply contracts. Amortization expense is estimated to be approximately \$34 million for each of the next five years.

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations assume that the acquisition of Altivity occurred as of the beginning of the periods presented and excludes the 2008 results for the two coated-recycled board mills divested in September 2008 and excludes charges associated with the Altivity Transaction. This pro forma data is based on historical information and does not necessarily reflect the actual results that would have occurred, nor is it indicative of future results of operations.

	Three Months Ended June 30, 2008		Months Ended ine 30, 2008
In millions			
Net Sales	\$	1,123.5	\$ 2,220.1
Net Income (Loss)	\$	3.8	\$ (19.7)
Income (Loss) Per Share — Basic and Diluted	\$	0.01	\$ (0.06)

NOTE 3 — RESTRUCTURING RESERVES

In conjunction with the Altivity Transaction, the Company formulated plans to close or exit certain production facilities of Altivity. Restructuring reserves were established for employee severance and benefit payments, facility closure costs and equipment removal. These restructuring reserves were established in accordance with the requirement of Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") 95-3, "Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase Business Combination," and were considered liabilities assumed in the Altivity Transaction. The Company has announced the closure of seven Altivity facilities and has committed to four additional plant closures. The restructuring activities are expected to be substantially completed by December 31, 2010.

In addition, as of June 30, 2009, the Company has announced the closure of a GPC facility and a multi-wall bag facility. Termination benefits and retention bonuses related to workforce reduction were accrued in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities." The amount of termination benefits recorded in the second quarter and the first six months of 2009 was \$1.4 million and \$3.3 million, respectively, and is included in Selling, General and Administrative costs in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. No termination benefits were recorded in the second quarter and the first six months of 2008.

The portion of the restructuring reserves expected to be settled within one year is included in Other Accrued Liabilities on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The long-term portion of these reserves is included in Other Noncurrent Liabilities on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table summarizes the transactions within the restructuring reserves at June 30, 2009:

In millions	Severance and Benefits	Facility Closure Costs	Equipment Removal	Total
Establish Reserve	\$ 7.0	\$ 8.5	\$ 1.8	\$17.3
Additions to Reserves	13.4	2.3	0.8	16.5
Cash Payments	(6.1)	(0.7)	(0.5)	(7.3)
Other Adjustments	(0.4)	(0.3)	(0.1)	(0.8)
Balance at December 31, 2008	\$ 13.9	\$ 9.8	\$ 2.0	\$25.7
Additions to Reserves	4.3	0.9	0.3	5.5
Cash Payments	(6.5)	(1.4)	(0.3)	(8.2)
Other Adjustments	(2.3)	(1.2)	_	(3.5)
Balance at June 30, 2009	\$ 9.4	\$ 8.1	\$ 2.0	\$19.5

Accelerated or incremental depreciation was recorded for assets that will be removed from service before the end of their useful lives due to the facility closures. The following table summarizes the accelerated depreciation:

		Three Months Ended June 30,		nths Ended ne 30,
In millions	2009	2008	2009	2008
Accelerated Depreciation	\$ 4.2	\$ 0.5	\$ 8.3	\$ 0.5

NOTE 4 — INVENTORIES

Inventories by major class:

In millions	June 30, 2009	December 31, 2008
Finished Goods	\$256.5	\$ 301.3
Work in Progress	47.4	46.0
Raw Materials	126.3	116.5
Supplies	71.0	77.9
	501.2	541.7
Less: Allowance	(28.2)	(9.7)
Total	\$473.0	\$ 532.0

NOTE 5 — GOODWILL

The following is a rollforward of goodwill by business segment as of June 30, 2009:

	Paperboard	Multi-wall	Specialty	
In millions	Packaging	Bag	Packaging	Total
Balance at December 31, 2008	\$ 1,050.3	\$ 61.9	\$ 92.6	\$1,204.8
Purchase Accounting	2.2	_	4.8	7.0
Divesture of Businesses	_	(1.5)	(0.4)	(1.9)
Foreign Currency Effects	_	_	(0.9)	(0.9)
Balance at June 30, 2009	\$ 1,052.5	\$ 60.4	\$ 96.1	\$1,209.0

NOTE 6 — DEBT

On May 16, 2007, the Company entered into a new \$1,355 million Credit Agreement ("Credit Agreement"). The Credit Agreement provided for a \$300 million revolving credit facility due on May 16, 2013 and a \$1,055 million term loan facility due on May 16, 2014. The revolving credit facility bears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 225 basis points and the term loan facility bears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 200 basis points. The Company's obligations under the Credit Agreement are collateralized by substantially all of the Company's domestic assets.

On March 10, 2008, the Company entered into Amendment No. 1 and Amendment No. 2 to the Credit Agreement. Under such amendments, the Company obtained (i) a new \$1,200 million term loan facility, due on May 16, 2014, to refinance the outstanding amounts under Altivity's parent company's existing first and second lien credit facilities and (ii) an increase to the Company's existing revolving credit facility to \$400 million due on May 16, 2013. The Company's existing \$1,055 million term loan facility remains in place. The new term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 275 basis points. The Company's weighted average interest rate on senior secured term debt will equal approximately LIBOR plus 237.5 basis points. In connection with the new term loan and revolver increase, the Company recorded approximately \$16 million of deferred financing costs.

On June 16, 2009, the Company completed the issuance and sale of \$245 million aggregate principal amount of its 9.5% Senior Notes due in 2017. The proceeds from the offering were \$238.4 million after deducting the original issue discount. The proceeds from the offering were used to refinance, through a tender offer, \$225 million aggregate principal amount of the 8.5% Senior Notes due in 2011 and to pay applicable early tender premiums and offering expenses.

In connection with the refinancing of its Senior Notes, the Company recorded a charge of \$6.1 million, which represented a portion of the unamortized deferred financing costs and the early tender premiums associated with the 8.5% Senior Notes due in 2011. This charge is reflected as Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt in the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. In connection with the 9.5% Senior Notes due in 2017, the Company recorded approximately \$6.4 million of deferred financing costs. These costs will be amortized using the effective interest method over the term of the 9.5% Senior Notes.

Long-Term Debt consisted of the following:

In millions	June 30, 2009	December 31, 2008
Senior Notes with interest payable semi-annually at 8.5%, payable in 2011	\$ 200.0	\$ 425.0
Senior Notes with interest payable semi-annually at 9.5%, payable in 2017 (\$245.0 face amount less unamortized		
discount of \$6.6)	238.4	_
Senior Subordinated Notes with interest payable semi-annually at 9.5%, payable in 2013	425.0	425.0
Senior Secured Term Loan Facility with interest payable at various dates at floating rates (3.03% at June 30, 2009)		
payable through 2014	1,000.3	1,000.3
Senior Secured Term Loan Facility with interest payable at various dates at floating rates (3.75% at June 30, 2009)		
payable through 2014	1,182.0	1,182.3
Senior Secured Revolving Facility with interest payable at various dates at floating rates (2.57% at June 30, 2009)		
payable in 2013	16.5	143.2
Other	0.8	0.8
	3,063.0	3,176.6
Less, current portion	22.3	11.4
Total	\$3,040.7	\$ 3,165.2

At June 30, 2009, the Company and its U.S. and international subsidiaries had the following commitments, amounts outstanding and amounts available under revolving credit facilities:

	Total Amount of	Total Amount	Total Amount
In millions	Commitments	Outstanding	Available ^(a)
Revolving Credit Facility	\$ 400.0	\$ 16.5	\$ 351.9
International Facilities	15.6	5.3	10.3
Total	\$ 415.6	\$ 21.8	\$ 362.2

Note:

(a) In accordance with its debt agreements, the Company's availability under its Revolving Credit Facility has been reduced by the amount of standby letters of credit issued of \$31.6 million as of June 30, 2009. These letters of credit are used as security against the Company's self-insurance obligations and workers' compensation obligations. These letters of credit expire at various dates through 2010 unless extended.

The Credit Agreement and the indentures governing the 8.5% Senior Notes, the 9.5% Senior Notes and the Senior Subordinated Notes (the "Notes") limit the Company's ability to incur additional indebtedness. Additional covenants contained in the Credit Agreement, among other things, restrict the ability of the Company to dispose of assets, incur guarantee obligations, prepay other indebtedness, make dividend and other restricted payments, create liens, make equity or debt investments, make acquisitions, modify terms of indentures under which the Notes are issued, engage in mergers or consolidations, change the business conducted by the Company and its subsidiaries, and engage in certain transactions with affiliates. Such restrictions, together with the highly leveraged nature of the Company, could limit the Company's ability to respond to changing market conditions, fund its capital spending program, provide for unexpected capital investments or take advantage of business opportunities.

As of June 30, 2009, the Company was in compliance with the financial covenant in the Credit Agreement. The Company's ability to comply in future periods with the financial covenant in the Credit Agreement will depend on its ongoing financial and operating performance, which in turn will be subject to economic conditions and to financial, business and other factors, many of which are beyond the Company's control, and will be substantially dependent on the selling prices for the Company's products, raw material and energy costs, and the Company's ability to successfully implement its overall business strategies, and meet its profitability objectives. If a violation of the financial covenant or any of the other covenants occurred, the Company would attempt to obtain a waiver or an amendment from its lenders, although no assurance can be given that the Company would be successful in this regard. The Credit Agreement and the indentures governing the Notes have certain cross-default or cross-acceleration provisions; failure to comply with these covenants in any agreement could result in a violation of such agreement which could, in turn, lead to violations of other agreements pursuant to such cross-default or cross-acceleration provisions. If an event of default occurs, the lenders are entitled to declare all amounts owed to be due and payable immediately.

NOTE 7 — STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

GPC had eight equity compensation plans, all of which were assumed by the Company pursuant to the Altivity Transaction. The Company's only active plan as of June 30, 2009 is the Graphic Packaging Holding Company Amended and Restated 2004 Stock and Incentive Compensation Plan ("2004 Plan"), pursuant to which the Company may grant stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units and other types of stock-based awards to employees and directors of the Company. Stock options and other awards granted under all of the Company's plans generally vest and expire in accordance with terms established at the time of grant.

Stock Options

GPC and the Company have not granted any stock options since 2004. During the six months ended June 30, 2009, no stock options were exercised and 648,795 stock options were cancelled. The total number of shares subject to options at June 30, 2009 was 6,467,092 at a weighted average exercise price of \$7.27.

Stock Awards, Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The Company's 2004 Plan permits the grant of stock awards, restricted stock and restricted stock units ("RSUs"). All RSUs vest and become payable in one to five years from date of grant. Upon vesting, RSUs are payable in cash and shares, based on the proportion set forth in the grant agreements.

Data concerning RSUs granted in the first six months of 2009 is as follows:

Shares in thousands	Shares	Grant I	ted Avg. Date Fair Per Share
RSUs — Employees	8,390	\$	0.89
Stock Awards — Board of Directors	651	\$	1.52

The value of the RSUs is based on the market value of the Company's common stock on the date of grant. The RSUs payable in cash are subject to variable accounting and marked to market accordingly. The RSUs payable in cash are recorded as liabilities, whereas the RSUs payable in shares are recorded in Shareholders' Equity.

During the first six months of 2009, the Company also issued 15,607 shares of phantom stock, representing compensation earned during 2008 and deferred by one of its directors. These shares of phantom stock are fully vested on the date of grant and are payable upon termination of service as a director. The Company also has an obligation to issue 48,653 shares in payment of employee deferred compensation.

During the six months ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, \$1.7 million and \$6.4 million were charged to compensation expense for RSUs, respectively. Of the amount charged to expense during the first six months of 2008, \$7.1 million was attributable to the accelerated vesting of RSUs and other payments triggered by the change of control resulting from the Altivity Transaction on March 10, 2008.

The unrecognized expense as of June 30, 2009 is approximately \$11 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of three years.

NOTE 8 — PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company maintains both defined benefit pension plans and postretirement health care plans. The plans provide medical and life insurance coverage to eligible salaried and hourly retired employees and their dependents. Currently, the plans are closed to newly-hired salaried and non-union hourly employees.

The Company's funding policies with respect to its North American pension plans are to contribute funds to trusts as necessary to at least meet the minimum funding requirements. Plan assets are invested in equities and fixed income securities.

Pension and Postretirement Expense

The pension and postretirement expenses related to the North American plans consisted of the following:

		Pension I	Benefits		Postretirement Health Care Benefits				
		nths Ended		ths Ended	Three Mon		Six Months Ended		
	Jur	ne 30,	Jun	ie 30,	June	2 30,	June 30,		
In millions	2009	2008	2009	2008	2009	2008	2009	2008	
Components of Net Periodic Cost:									
Service Cost	\$ 4.7	\$ 4.5	\$ 9.5	\$ 8.3	\$ 0.4	\$ 0.4	\$ 0.8	\$ 0.7	
Interest Cost	11.1	9.9	22.0	19.2	0.8	0.9	1.7	1.7	
Expected Return on Plan Assets	(9.1)	(10.4)	(18.2)	(20.4)	_	_	_	_	
Amortizations:									
Prior Service Cost	0.3	0.7	0.6	1.5	(0.1)	_	(0.1)	_	
Actuarial Loss (Gain)	5.1	0.4	10.1	0.8	(0.1)	(0.1)	(0.3)	(0.2)	
Net Periodic Cost	\$ 12.1	\$ 5.1	\$ 24.0	\$ 9.4	\$ 1.0	\$ 1.2	\$ 2.1	\$ 2.2	

The Company made contributions of \$13.0 million and \$30.2 million to its pension plans during the first six months of 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Company expects to make contributions of \$60 million to \$70 million for the full year 2009. During 2008, the Company made \$56.8 million of contributions to its pension plans.

The Company made postretirement health care benefit payments of \$1.3 million and \$1.1 million during the first six months of 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Company estimates its postretirement health care benefit payments for the full year 2009 to be approximately \$4 million. During 2008, the Company made postretirement health care benefit payments of \$2.7 million.

NOTE 9 — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Company enters into derivative instruments for risk management purposes only, including derivatives designated as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," ("SFAS 133"), and those not designated as hedging instruments under SFAS 133. The Company uses interest rate swaps, natural gas swap contracts, and forward exchange contracts.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company uses interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risks on future interest payments caused by interest rate changes on its variable rate term loan facility. At June 30, 2009, the Company had interest rate swap agreements with a notional amount of \$2.2 billion, including \$400 million in forward starting interest rate swaps, which expire on various dates from 2010 to 2012 under which the Company will pay fixed rates of 2.24% to 5.06% and receive the three-month LIBOR rates. At December 31, 2008, the Company had interest rate swap agreements with a notional amount of \$1.6 billion, which expire on various dates from 2009 to 2012 under which the Company will pay fixed rates of 2.37% to 5.06% and receive the three-month LIBOR rates.

These derivative instruments are designated as cash flow hedges and to the extent they are effective in offsetting the variability of the hedged cash flows, changes in the derivatives' fair value are not included in current earnings but are included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss. These changes in fair value will subsequently be reclassified into earnings as a component of Interest Expense as interest is incurred on amounts outstanding under the term loan facility. Ineffectiveness measured in the hedging relationship is recorded in earnings in the period it occurs.

During the first six months of 2009, there were minimal amounts of ineffectiveness related to changes in the fair value of interest rate swap agreements. Additionally, there were no amounts excluded from the measure of effectiveness.

Commodity Risk

To manage risks associated with future variability in cash flows and price risk attributable to certain commodity purchases, the Company enters into natural gas swap contracts to hedge prices for a designated percentage of its expected natural gas usage. Such contracts are designated as cash flow hedges. As of June 30, 2009, the Company had entered into natural gas swap contracts to hedge prices for approximately 72% and 20% of its expected natural gas usage for the remainder of 2009 and 2010, respectively. When a contract matures, the resulting gain or loss is reclassified into Cost of Sales concurrently with the recognition of the commodity purchased. The ineffective portion of the swap contracts' change in fair value, if any, would be recognized immediately in earnings.

During the first six months of 2009, there were minimal amounts of ineffectiveness related to changes in the fair value of natural gas swap contracts. Additionally, there were no amounts excluded from the measure of effectiveness.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts to manage risks associated with future variability in cash flows resulting from anticipated foreign currency transactions that may be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. Such contracts are designated as cash flow hedges. Gains/losses, if any, related to these contracts are recognized in Other Income, Net when the anticipated transaction affects income.

At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, forward exchange contracts existed that expire on various dates throughout 2009. Those purchased forward exchange contracts outstanding at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, when measured in U.S. dollars at exchange rates at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, had notional amounts totaling \$38.1 million and \$80.8 million.

No amounts were reclassified to earnings during the first six months of 2009 in connection with forecasted transactions that were no longer considered probable of occurring, and there was no ineffectiveness related to changes in the fair value of foreign currency forward contracts. Additionally, there were no amounts excluded from the measure of effectiveness.

Derivatives not Designated as Hedges

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts to effectively hedge substantially all of accounts receivable resulting from transactions denominated in foreign currencies in order to manage risks associated with foreign currency transactions adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. At June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, multiple foreign currency forward exchange contracts existed, with maturities ranging up to three months. Those foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, when aggregated and measured in U.S. dollars at exchange rates at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, had net notional amounts totaling \$12.2 million and \$4.4 million. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from these contracts are recognized in Other Income, Net.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company's derivative instruments are carried at fair value. The Company has determined that the inputs to the valuation of these derivative instruments are level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

As of June 30, 2009, there has not been any significant impact to the fair value of the Company's derivative liabilities due to its own credit risk. Similarly, there has not been any significant adverse impact to the Company's derivative assets based on evaluation of the Company's counterparties' credit risks.

The fair value of the Company's derivative instruments as of June 30, 2009 is as follows:

In millions		Derivative Assets		Derivative Liabilities
	Balance Sheet	June 30,	Balance Sheet	June 30,
	Location	2009	Location	2009
Derivative Contracts Not Designated as Hedging				
Instruments under SFAS No. 133				
Commodity Contracts	Other Current Assets	\$ —	Other Accrued Liabilities	\$ 15.9
Foreign Currency Contracts	Other Current Assets	1.7	Other Accrued Liabilities	1.4
Interest Rate Swap Agreements	Other Current Assets	_	Other Accrued Liabilities	42.4
		\$ 1.7		\$ 59.7
Derivative Contracts Not Designated as Hedging				
Instruments under SFAS No. 133				
Foreign Currency Contracts	Other Current Assets	\$ —	Other Accrued Liabilities	\$ —
		\$ —		\$ —
Total Derivative Contracts		\$ 1.7		\$ 59.7

The fair values of the Company's other financial assets and liabilities at June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008 approximately equal the carrying values reported on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets except for Long-Term Debt. The fair value of the Company's Long-Term Debt was \$2,891.9 million and \$2,438.5 million as compared to the carrying amounts of \$3,063.0 million and \$3,176.6 million as of June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. The fair value of Long-Term Debt is based on quoted market prices.

Effect of Derivative Instruments

The effect of derivative instruments in cash flow hedging relationships on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

		Amount o	f (Loss)) Gain									
		Recog	gnized i	n									
		Accumu	lated O	ther		Amount o	f (Loss	s) Gain			Amour	it of Ga	in
		Comprehe	ensive I	ncome		Recognize	ed in Iı	ncome		1	Recognize	d in In	come
		(1	Loss)			(effectiv	ve port	tion)			(ineffecti	ve port	ion)
		Three		Six	Location of Loss	Three		Six	Location of Gain	Г	hree		Six
	N	Ionths		Months	Recognized	Months		Months	Recognized	M	onths	M	onths
]	Ended		Ended	in Income	Ended		Ended	in Income	E	nded	F	nded
	J	une 30,		June 30,	(effective	June 30,		June 30,	(ineffective	Ju	ne 30,	Ju	ne 30,
In millions		2009		2009	portion)	2009		2009	portion)		2009		2009
Commodity Contracts	\$	(1.0)	\$	(13.8)	Cost of Sales	\$ (10.2)	\$	(22.1)	Cost of Sales	\$	0.1	\$	0.6
Foreign Currency Contracts					Other				Other				
		(1.7)		2.8	Income, Net	0.9		0.4	Income, Net		_		_
Interest Rate Swap Agreements		4.4		(8.0)	Interest Expense	(10.5)		(19.6)	Interest Expense		0.1		0.1
Total	\$	1.7	\$	(19.0)		\$ (19.8)	\$	(41.3)		\$	0.2	\$	0.7

The effect of derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

	Location of Gain	Amount of	Amount of Gain					
	Recognized	Recognized in	Income					
	in Income on	Three Months Ended	Six Months Ended					
In millions	Derivatives	June 30, 2009	June 30, 2009					
Foreign Currency Contracts	Other Income, Net	\$ 0.2	\$ 0.2					

Accumulated Derivative Instruments (Loss) Gain

The following is a reconciliation of changes in fair value which have been recorded as Accumulated Derivative Instruments (Loss) Gain in the Statement of Shareholders' Equity as of June 30, 2009:

In millions	
Balance at January 1, 2009	\$(68.5)
Reclassification to earnings	41.3
Current period change in fair value	(19.0)
Balance at June 30, 2009	\$(46.2)

At June 30, 2009, the Company expects to reclassify approximately \$31 million of losses in the next twelve months from Accumulated Derivative Instruments (Loss) Gain to earnings, contemporaneously with and offsetting changes in the related hedged exposure. The actual amount that will be reclassified to future earnings may vary as a result of changes in market conditions.

NOTE 10 — ENVIRONMENTAL AND LEGAL MATTERS

Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to a broad range of foreign, federal, state and local environmental, health and safety laws and regulations, including those governing discharges to air, soil and water, the management, treatment and disposal of hazardous substances, solid waste and hazardous wastes, the investigation and remediation of contamination resulting from historical site operations and releases of hazardous substances, and the health and safety of employees. Compliance initiatives could result in significant costs, which could negatively impact the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Any failure to comply with such laws and regulations or any permits and authorizations required thereunder could subject the Company to fines, corrective action or other sanctions.

In addition, some of the Company's current and former facilities are the subject of environmental investigations and remediations resulting from historical operations and the release of hazardous substances or other constituents. Some current and former facilities have a history of industrial usage for which investigation and remediation obligations may be imposed in the future or for which

indemnification claims may be asserted against the Company. Also, potential future closures or sales of facilities may necessitate further investigation and may result in future remediation at those facilities.

During the first quarter of 2006, the Company self-reported certain violations of its Title V permit under the federal Clean Air Act for its West Monroe, Louisiana mill to the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality (the "LADEQ"). The violations relate to the collection, treatment and reporting of hazardous air pollutants. The Company recorded \$0.6 million of expense in the first quarter of 2006 for compliance costs to correct the technical issues causing the Title V permit violations. The Company received a consolidated Compliance Order and notice of potential penalty dated July 5, 2006 from the LADEQ indicating that the Company may be required to pay civil penalties for violations that occurred from 2001 through 2005. In June 2009, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with the LADEQ resolving all of the violations. In connection therewith, the Company paid a \$240,000 fine to the LADEQ and donated \$50,000 to Louisiana State University agriculture center's 4-H Camp Grant Walker as a beneficial environmental project.

In 2007, at the request of the County Administrative Board of Östergötland, Sweden, the Company conducted a risk classification of its mill property located in Norrköping, Sweden. Based on the information collected through this activity, the Company determined that some remediation of the site was reasonably probable and recorded a \$3.0 million reserve in the third quarter of 2007. Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement dated October 16, 2007 between Graphic Packaging International Holding Sweden AB (the "Seller") and Lagrumment December nr 1031 Aktiebolg under which the Company's Swedish operations were sold, the Seller retains liability for certain environmental claims after the sale. In addition, during 2008, the Company determined an additional liability of \$0.9 million was necessary and recorded this in discontinued operations within the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company paid \$3.4 million against the reserve in 2008 and an additional \$0.6 million during the second quarter of 2009. The Company does not currently expect to have any further environmental liability for this site.

On October 8, 2007, the Company received a notice from the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the "EPA") indicating that it is a potentially responsible party for the remedial investigation and feasibility study to be conducted at the Devil's Swamp Lake site in East Baton Rouge Parish, Louisiana. The Company expects to enter into negotiations with the EPA regarding its potential responsibility and liability, but it is too early in the investigation process to quantify possible costs with respect to such site.

The Company has established reserves for those facilities or issues where liability is probable and the costs are reasonably estimable. The Company believes that the amounts accrued for all of its loss contingencies, and the reasonably possible loss beyond the amounts accrued, are not material to the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. The Company cannot estimate with certainty other future corrective compliance, investigation or remediation costs. Costs relating to historical usage or indemnification claims that the Company considers to be reasonably possible are not quantifiable at this time. The Company will continue to monitor environmental issues at each of its facilities and will revise its accruals, estimates and disclosures relating to past, present and future operations, as additional information is obtained.

Legal Matters

The Company is a party to a number of lawsuits arising in the ordinary conduct of its business. Although the timing and outcome of these lawsuits cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company does not believe that disposition of these lawsuits will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 11 — BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company reports its results in three business segments: paperboard packaging, multi-wall bag and specialty packaging. These segments are evaluated by the chief operating decision maker based primarily on Income from Operations. The Company's reportable segments are based upon strategic business units that offer different products.

The paperboard packaging segment is highly integrated and includes a system of mills and plants that produces a broad range of paperboard grades convertible into folding cartons. Folding cartons are used primarily to protect products, such as food, detergents, paper products, beverages, and health and beauty aids, while providing point of purchase advertising. The paperboard packaging business segment includes the design, manufacture and installation of packaging machinery related to the assembly of cartons and the production and sale of corrugating medium and kraft paper from paperboard mills in the U.S.

The multi-wall bag business segment converts kraft and specialty paper into multi-wall bags, consumer bags and specialty retail bags. The bags are designed to ship and protect a wide range of industrial and consumer products including fertilizers, chemicals, concrete and pet and food products.

The specialty packaging business segment primarily includes flexible packaging, label solutions, laminations, inks and coatings. This segment converts a wide variety of technologically advanced films for use in the food, pharmaceutical and industrial end-markets. Flexible packaging paper and metallicized paper labels and heat transfer labels are used in a wide range of consumer applications.

Prior year segment results have been reclassified for the allocation of certain corporate costs.

Business segment information is as follows:

		Months Ended June 30,	Six Months Ended June 30,		
In millions	2009	2008	2009	2008	
NET SALES:					
Paperboard Packaging	\$ 879.3	\$ 928.5	\$1,719.7	\$1,585.6	
Multi-wall Bag	115.3	143.5	240.1	193.5	
Specialty Packaging	49.2	69.7	103.2	86.9	
Total	\$1,043.8	\$1,141.7	\$2,063.0	\$1,866.0	
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS:					
Paperboard Packaging	\$ 85.4	\$ 66.8	\$ 141.4	\$ 121.2	
Multi-wall Bag	(1.7)	6.1	1.4	9.9	
Specialty Packaging	3.6	2.7	6.1	3.0	
Corporate	0.7	(13.7)	(27.8)	(46.7)	
Total	\$ 88.0	\$ 61.9	\$ 121.1	\$ 87.4	

NOTE 12 — EARNINGS PER SHARE

		onths Ended ne 30,	Six Months Ended June 30,		
In millions, except per share data	2009	2008	2009	2008	
Net Income (Loss)	\$ 19.6	\$ (4.3)	\$ (8.6)	\$ (27.6)	
Weighted Average Shares:					
Basic	343.0	342.9	342.8	288.7	
Stock Awards	1.3	_	_		
Diluted	344.3	342.9	342.8	288.7	
Earnings Per Share:					
Basic	\$ 0.06	\$ (0.01)	\$ (0.03)	\$ (0.10)	
Diluted	\$ 0.06	\$ (0.01)	\$ (0.03)	\$ (0.10)	

The effect of 6,054,592 out-of-the-money options and 15,000 RSUs were excluded from the above calculation for the quarter ended June 30, 2009 because the effect would have been anti-dilutive.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

This management's discussion and analysis of financial conditions and results of operations is intended to provide investors with an understanding of Graphic Packaging Holding Company's ("GPHC" and, together with its subsidiaries, the "Company") past performance, its financial condition and its prospects. The following will be discussed and analyzed:

- > Overview of Business
- Overview of 2009 Results
- > Results of Operations
- > Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources
- > Critical Accounting Policies
- > New Accounting Standards
- ➤ Business Outlook

OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS

The Company's objective is to strengthen its position as a leading provider of packaging solutions. To achieve this objective, the Company offers customers its paperboard, cartons and packaging machines, either as an integrated solution or separately. Cartons and carriers are designed to protect and contain products. Product offerings include a variety of laminated, coated and printed packaging structures that are produced from its coated unbleached kraft paperboard ("CUK board") and coated-recycled paperboard ("CRB"), as well as other grades of paperboard that are purchased from third party suppliers. Innovative designs and combinations of paperboard, films, foils, metallization, holographics, embossing and other are customized to the individual needs of the customers.

The Company is also a leading supplier of multi-wall bags and in addition to a full range of products, provides customers with value-added graphical and technical support, and packaging workshops to help educate customers.

The Company's specialty packaging business has an established position in end-markets for food products, pharmaceutical and medical products, personal care, industrial, pet food and pet care products, horticulture, military and commercial retort pouches and shingle wrap. In addition, the Company's label business focuses on two product lines: heat transfer labels and litho labels.

The Company is implementing strategies (i) to expand market share in its current markets and to identify and penetrate new markets; (ii) to capitalize on the Company's customer relationships, business competencies, and mills and converting assets; (iii) to develop and market innovative products and applications; and (iv) to continue to reduce costs by focusing on operational improvements. The Company's ability to fully implement its strategies and achieve its objective may be influenced by a variety of factors, many of which are beyond its control, such as inflation of raw material and other costs, which the Company cannot always pass through to its customers, and the effect of overcapacity in the worldwide paperboard packaging industry.

Significant Factors That Impact The Company's Business

Impact of Inflation. The Company's cost of sales consists primarily of energy (including natural gas, fuel oil and electricity), pine pulpwood, chemicals, recycled fibers, purchased paperboard, paper, aluminum foil, ink, plastic films and resins, depreciation expense and labor. Although the Company is currently experiencing some deflation with certain input costs, its cost of goods sold during the first six months of 2009 reflects the higher cost associated with the inventory on hand at December 31, 2008. Inflation increased costs in the first six months of 2009 by \$32.3 million, compared to the first six months of 2008. The 2009 costs are primarily related to the December 31, 2008 inventory sold during the first quarter of 2009 (\$19.5 million); outside board purchases (\$14.0 million); labor and related benefits (\$12.3 million); and chemical based inputs (\$7.7 million). These costs were partially offset by other lower costs (\$21.2 million), primarily due to lower costs for secondary fiber, resin, wood and energy.

As the price of natural gas has experienced significant variability, the Company has entered into contracts designed to manage risks associated with future variability in cash flows caused by changes in the price of natural gas. The Company has hedged approximately 72% and 20% of its expected natural gas usage for the remainder of 2009 and 2010, respectively. The Company believes that the deflation it has experienced with certain input costs in the first six months of 2009 will benefit results in 2009, although inflationary pressures, including higher costs for chemical-based inputs and labor and related benefits, will most likely continue to negatively impact its results for 2009. Since negotiated sales contracts and the market largely determine the pricing for its products, the Company is at times limited in its ability to raise prices and pass through to its customers all inflationary or other cost increases that the Company may incur.

Substantial Debt Obligations. The Company has \$3,068.3 million of outstanding debt obligations as of June 30, 2009. This debt can have significant consequences for the Company, as it requires a significant portion of cash flow from operations to be used for the payment of principal and interest, exposes the Company to the risk of increased interest rates and restricts the Company's ability to obtain additional financing. Covenants in the Company's Credit Agreement also prohibit or restrict, among other things, the disposal of assets, the incurrence of additional indebtedness (including guarantees), payment of dividends, loans or advances and certain other types of transactions. These restrictions could limit the Company's flexibility to respond to changing market conditions and competitive pressures. The covenants also require compliance with a consolidated secured leverage ratio. The Company's ability to comply in future periods with the financial covenant will depend on its ongoing financial and operating performance, which in turn will be subject to many other factors, many of which are beyond the Company's control. See "Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources" for additional information regarding the Company's debt obligations.

Commitment to Cost Reduction. In light of increasing margin pressure throughout the packaging industry, the Company has programs in place that are designed to reduce costs, improve productivity and increase profitability. The Company utilizes a global continuous improvement initiative that uses statistical process control to help design and manage many types of activities, including production and maintenance. This includes a Six Sigma process focused on reducing variable and fixed manufacturing and administrative costs. The Company expanded the continuous improvement initiative to include the deployment of Lean Sigma principles into manufacturing and supply chain services. As the Company strengthens the systems approach to continuous improvement, Lean Sigma supports the efforts to build a high performing culture. During the first six months of 2009, the Company achieved \$25.3 million in cost savings as compared to the first six months of 2008, through its continuous improvement programs and manufacturing initiatives.

As part of the integration with Altivity, the Company has accelerated and achieved cost synergies and operating efficiencies sooner than expected. The Company will continue to benefit from these actions as long as the run rate continues at the current level. The inability to maintain the run rate could negatively impact future results.

Competition and Market Factors. As some products can be packaged in different types of materials, the Company's sales are affected by competition from other manufacturers' CUK board and other substrates — solid bleached sulfate ("SBS") and recycled clay coated news ("CCN"). Substitute products also include shrink film and corrugated containers. In addition, the Company's sales historically are driven by consumer buying habits in the markets its customers serve. Continuing increases in the cost of living, conditions in the residential real estate market, rising unemployment rates, reduced access to credit and declining consumer confidence, as well as other macroeconomic factors, may significantly negatively affect consumer spending behavior, which could have a material adverse effect on demand for the Company's products. New product introductions and promotional activity by the Company's customers and the Company's introduction of new packaging products also impact its sales. The Company's containerboard business is subject to conditions in the cyclical worldwide commodity paperboard markets, which have a significant impact on containerboard sales. In addition, the Company's net sales, income from operations and cash flows from operations are subject to moderate seasonality, with demand usually increasing in the spring and summer due to the seasonality of the worldwide beverage multiple packaging markets.

The Company works to maintain market share through efficiency, product innovation and strategic sourcing to its customers; however, pricing and other competitive pressures may occasionally result in the loss of a customer relationship.

OVERVIEW OF 2009 RESULTS

- Net Sales in the second quarter of 2009 decreased by \$97.9 million, or 8.6%, to \$1,043.8 million from \$1,141.7 million in the second quarter of 2008 due to lower volume across all segments, including the impact of the divested businesses of \$21.8 million and unfavorable changes in currency exchange rates in Europe and Australia. These decreases were partially offset by improved pricing within the paperboard packaging segment.
- Income from Operations in the second quarter of 2009 increased by \$26.1 million, or 42.2%, to \$88.0 million from \$61.9 million in the second quarter of 2008. The increase was due to a \$55.3 million alternative fuel tax credit, net of expenses, cost savings through continuous improvement and synergy programs and the improved pricing. These increases were partially offset by higher unabsorbed fixed costs, higher merger-related expense, the lower volume, and higher pension, incentive and depreciation expense.
- The Company burns alternative fuel mixtures at its West Monroe and Macon mills in order to produce energy and recover chemicals. The U.S. Internal Revenue Code allows an excise tax credit under certain circumstances for the use of alternative fuels and alternative fuel mixtures. In the first quarter 2009, the Company filed an application with the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") for certification of eligibility to receive the tax credit for its use of black liquor in alternative fuel mixtures in the recovery boilers at the mills. During the second quarter 2009, the Company received notification from the IRS that its registration as an alternate fuel mixer had been approved. The Company has submitted refund claims totaling \$61.9 million based on fuel usage at the two mills from mid-January 2009 through June 30, 2009. The Company received refunds totaling \$51.6 million through the end of the quarter. The impact of the tax credit is included in Other Income, Net in the amount of \$61.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2009, and is included in Corporate for segment reporting purposes. The excise tax credit is currently scheduled to expire on December 31, 2009.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company's results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 include the results of Altivity from March 10, 2008, the date of the Altivity Transaction, through June 30, 2008.

Segment Information

The Company reports its results in three business segments: paperboard packaging, multi-wall bag and specialty packaging. Prior year segment results have been reclassified for the allocation of certain corporate costs.

		Three Months Ended June 30,			
In millions	2009	2008	2009	2008	
NET SALES:					
Paperboard Packaging	\$ 879.3	\$ 928.5	\$1,719.7	\$1,585.6	
Multi-wall Bag	115.3	143.5	240.1	193.5	
Specialty Packaging	49.2	69.7	103.2	86.9	
Total	\$1,043.8	\$1,141.7	\$2,063.0	\$1,866.0	
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS:					
Paperboard Packaging	\$ 85.4	\$ 66.8	\$ 141.4	\$ 121.2	
Multi-wall Bag	(1.7)	6.1	1.4	9.9	
Specialty Packaging	3.6	2.7	6.1	3.0	
Corporate	0.7	(13.7)	(27.8)	(46.7)	
Total	\$ 88.0	\$ 61.9	\$ 121.1	\$ 87.4	

SECOND QUARTER 2009 COMPARED WITH SECOND QUARTER 2008

Net Sales

		Three Months Ended June 30,				
In millions	2009	2008	Decrease	Percent Change		
Paperboard Packaging	\$ 879.3	\$ 928.5	\$ (49.2)	(5.3)%		
Multi-wall Bag	115.3	143.5	(28.2)	(19.7)%		
Specialty Packaging	49.2	69.7	(20.5)	(29.4)%		
Total	\$1,043.8	\$1,141.7	\$ (97.9)	(8.6)%		

The components of the change in Net Sales by segment are as follows:

		Three Months Ended June 30,							
	•		Varia	inces					
In millions	2008	Price	Volume/Mix	Exchange	Total	2009			
Paperboard Packaging	\$ 928.5	\$12.4	\$ (51.6)	\$ (10.0)	\$(49.2)	\$ 879.3			
Multi-wall Bag	143.5	(1.8)	(26.4)	_	(28.2)	115.3			
Specialty Packaging	69.7	(2.3)	(18.1)	(0.1)	(20.5)	49.2			
Total	\$1,141.7	\$ 8.3	\$ (96.1)	\$ (10.1)	\$(97.9)	\$1,043.8			

Paperboard Packaging

The Company's Net Sales from paperboard packaging in the second quarter of 2009 decreased by \$49.2 million, or 5.3% to \$879.3 million from \$928.5 million in the second quarter of 2008 due to lower sales volume for consumer products, containerboard and European open market, and the impact of the two coated-recycled board mills divested in September 2008. The lower consumer products sales were due to a decision to exit lower margin business, as well as the general market conditions in which volume was steady in staples (e.g., dry mixes, cereal, pizza) and was down in discretionary items (e.g., candy, frozen foods, eating out). The corrugated medium machine at West Monroe, LA was down for 17 days during the second quarter of 2009 due to softness in that market. Currency exchange rate changes also negatively impacted the quarter.

These decreases were partially offset by improved pricing in consumer products and beverage, as well as the improved volume/mix in beverage. The improvement in pricing reflects negotiated inflationary cost pass-throughs and other contractual increases. Beer volume continues to be strong in the sub-premium market, while soft drink volume is down.

Multi-wall Bag

The Company's second quarter Net Sales from multi-wall bag decreased by \$28.2 million as a result of lower volume due to market declines in the building products, chemicals, minerals, and agriculture and food industries, as well as lower pricing.

Specialty Packaging

The Company's second quarter Net Sales from specialty packaging decreased by \$20.5 million as a result of lower volume due to market declines in the building products, chemicals, and food and pharmaceutical industries, the sale of the ink business and lower pricing.

Income (Loss) from Operations

		Three Months Ended June 30,					
In millions	2009	2008	Increase (Decrease)	Percent Change			
Paperboard Packaging	\$85.4	\$ 66.8	\$ 18.6	27.8%			
Multi-wall Bag	(1.7)	6.1	(7.8)	N.M.(a)			
Specialty Packaging	3.6	2.7	0.9	33.3%			
Corporate	0.7	(13.7)	14.4	N.M.(a)			
Total	\$88.0	\$ 61.9	\$ 26.1	42.2%			

Note:

(a) Percentage calculation not meaningful.

The components of the change in Income (Loss) from Operations by segment are as follows:

		Three Months Ended June 30,							
					Variances				
In millions	2008	Price	Volume	e/Mix	Inflation	Exchange	Other (a)	Total	2009
			Acquisition	Organic					
Paperboard Packaging	\$ 66.8	\$12.4	\$ —	\$ (8.2)	\$ (13.0)	\$ (3.4)	\$ 30.8	\$18.6	\$85.4
Multi-wall Bag	6.1	(1.8)	_	(2.7)	2.2	_	(5.5)	(7.8)	(1.7)
Specialty Packaging	2.7	(2.3)	_	(3.6)	3.1	0.8	2.9	0.9	3.6
Corporate	(13.7)	_	11.9	_	_	3.6	(1.1)	14.4	0.7
Total	\$ 61.9	\$ 8.3	\$ 11.9	\$(14.5)	\$ (7.7)	\$ 1.0	\$ 27.1	\$26.1	\$88.0

Note:

(a) Includes the benefits from the Company's cost reduction initiatives.

Paperboard Packaging

The Company's Income from Operations from paperboard packaging in the second quarter of 2009 increased by \$18.6 million or 27.8% to \$85.4 million from \$66.8 million in the second quarter of 2008 primarily as a result of cost savings and synergies and the improved pricing. These increases were partially offset by the higher inflation, lower volume, higher incentive expense and higher unabsorbed fixed costs associated with the 17 days of downtime related to the corrugated medium machine. The inflation was primarily related to labor and related benefits, primarily pension expense, (\$10.8 million); outside board purchases (\$5.5 million); and inks and coatings (\$0.5 million); partially offset by other lower costs (\$3.8 million), primarily due to lower costs for energy and secondary fiber.

Multi-wall Bag

The Company's second quarter 2009 Income from Operations from multi-wall bag decreased by \$7.8 million as a result of the lower sales volume, higher unabsorbed fixed costs, accelerated depreciation for assets that will be removed from service before the end of their useful lives due to a facility closure, and the lower pricing, which was partially offset by lower costs, primarily for resin.

Specialty Packaging

The Company's second quarter 2009 Income from Operations from specialty packaging increased by \$0.9 million as a result of lower costs, primarily for resin and a gain on the sale of the ink business. These increases were partially offset by the lower volume and pricing.

Corporate

The Company's Loss from Operations from corporate in the second quarter of 2009 decreased \$14.4 million from the second quarter of 2008. The improvement resulted primarily from the \$55.3 million alternative fuel tax credit, net of expenses. These increases were partially offset by higher merger related expenses of \$26.5 million, including a \$19.4 million noncash charge related to excess maintenance, repair and overhaul ("MRO") inventory. As part of the integration strategy, control over MRO inventory was centralized and the current on-hand/replenishment strategy was reviewed. As a result of the review, the Company determined that \$19.4 million of inventory on hand was excess and recorded a noncash charge. The Company also recorded higher incentive expense in 2009. The second quarter 2008 included \$11.9 million of expense related to the step-up in inventory basis to fair value, partially offset by a favorable \$10.7 million mark-to-market adjustment for an interest rate swap.

FIRST SIX MONTHS OF 2009 COMPARED WITH FIRST SIX MONTHS OF 2008

Net Sales

		Six Months Ended June 30,				
			_	Percent		
In millions	2009	2008	Increase	Change		
Paperboard Packaging	\$1,719.7	\$1,585.6	\$134.1	8.5%		
Multi-wall Bag	240.1	193.5	46.6	24.1%		
Specialty Packaging	103.2	86.9	16.3	18.8%		
Total	\$2,063.0	\$1,866.0	\$197.0	10.6%		

The components of the change in Net Sales by segment are as follows:

		Six Months Ended June 30,						
	•			Variances			<u>.</u>	
In millions	2008	Price	Volum	ne/Mix	Exchange	Total	2009	
			Acquisition	Organic				
Paperboard Packaging	\$1,585.6	\$25.8	\$ 209.3	\$ (81.3)	\$ (19.7)	\$134.1	\$1,719.7	
Multi-wall Bag	193.5	(1.0)	80.0	(32.4)	` <u>_</u>	46.6	240.1	
Specialty Packaging	86.9	(2.7)	42.0	(22.7)	(0.3)	16.3	103.2	
Total	\$1,866.0	\$22.1	\$ 331.3	\$(136.4)	\$ (20.0)	\$197.0	\$2,063.0	

Paperboard Packaging

The Company's Net Sales from paperboard packaging in the first six months of 2009 increased by \$134.1 million, or 8.5%, to \$1,719.7 million from \$1,585.6 million in the first six months of 2008 as a result of the Altivity Transaction, improved pricing across all product lines and higher volume/mix in beverage. This was partially offset due to lower sales volume for consumer products, containerboard and European open market, and the impact of the two coated-recycled board mills divested in September 2008. The lower consumer products sales were due to a decision to exit lower margin business as well as the general market conditions in which volume was steady in staples (e.g., dry mixes, cereal, pizza) and was down in discretionary items (e.g., candy, frozen foods, eating out). The corrugated medium machine at West Monroe, LA was down for 36 days during the first six months of 2009 due to softness in that market. Currency exchange rate changes also negatively impacted the quarter.

Multi-wall Bag

The Company's Net Sales from multi-wall bag in the first six months of 2009 increased by \$46.6 million as a result the Altivity Transaction, partially offset by lower volume due to market declines in the building products, chemicals, minerals, and agriculture and food industries, as well as lower pricing.

Specialty Packaging

The Company's Net Sales from specialty packaging in the first six months of 2009 increased by \$16.3 million as a result of the Altivity Transaction, partially offset by lower volume due to market declines in the building products, chemicals, and food and pharmaceutical industries, the sale of the ink business and lower pricing.

Income (Loss) from Operations

		Six Months Ended June 30,					
In millions	2009	2008	Increase (Decrease)	Percent Change			
Paperboard Packaging	\$141.4	\$121.2	\$ 20.2	16.7%			
Multi-wall Bag	1.4	9.9	(8.5)	(85.9)%			
Specialty Packaging	6.1	3.0	3.1	N.M.(a)			
Corporate	(27.8)	(46.7)	18.9	N.M.(a)			
Total	\$121.1	\$ 87.4	\$ 33.7	38.6%			

Note:

(a) Percentage calculation not meaningful.

The components of the change in Income (Loss) from Operations by segment are as follows:

		Six Months Ended June 30,							
					Variances				
In millions	2008	Price	Volume	e/Mix	Inflation	Exchange	Other (a)	Total	2009
			Acquisition	Organic					
Paperboard Packaging	\$121.2	\$25.8	\$ 19.5	\$(10.6)	\$ (37.9)	\$ (2.7)	\$ 26.1	\$20.2	\$141.4
Multi-wall Bag	9.9	(1.0)	1.1	(3.5)	1.5	_	(6.6)	(8.5)	1.4
Specialty Packaging	3.0	(2.7)	2.3	(4.0)	4.1	1.0	2.4	3.1	6.1
Corporate	(46.7)	_	24.4	_	_	1.9	(7.4)	18.9	(27.8)
Total	\$ 87.4	\$22.1	\$ 47.3	\$(18.1)	\$ (32.3)	\$ 0.2	\$ 14.5	\$33.7	\$121.1

Note:

(a) Includes the benefits from the Company's cost reduction initiatives.

Paperboard Packaging

The Company's Income from Operations from paperboard packaging in the first six months of 2009 increased by \$20.2 million or 16.7% to \$141.4 million from \$121.2 million in the first six months of 2008 as a result of cost savings and synergies, the improved pricing and the Altivity Transaction. These increases were partially offset by the lower volume, higher inflation and depreciation expense, higher unabsorbed fixed costs associated with the 36 days of downtime related to the corrugated medium machine, the impact of the divested mills and costs associated with the pending closure of the Company's plant in Grenoble, France. The inflation was primarily related to December 31, 2008 inventory sold during the first quarter of 2009 (\$19.5 million); outside board purchases (\$13.5 million); labor and related benefits, primarily pension expense, (\$12.1 million); and chemical-based inputs (\$7.3 million); partially offset by other lower costs (\$14.5 million), primarily due to lower costs for secondary fiber and wood.

Multi-wall Bag

The Company's Income from Operations from multi-wall bag in the first six months of 2009 decreased by \$8.5 million as a result of the lower sales volume, accelerated depreciation and the lower pricing, which was partially offset by the Altivity Transaction and lower costs, primarily for resin.

Specialty Packaging

The Company's Income from Operations from specialty packaging in the first six months of 2009 increased by \$3.1 million as a result of lower costs, primarily for resin, the Altivity Transaction and the sale of the ink business. These increases were offset by the lower volume and pricing.

Corporate

The Company's Loss from Operations from corporate in the first six months of 2009 decreased \$18.9 million from the first six months of 2008. The improvement resulted primarily from the \$55.3 million alternative fuel tax credit, net of expenses. These increases were partially offset by higher merger related expenses of \$27.2 million, including a \$19.4 million noncash charge related to excess MRO inventory. The Company also recorded higher incentive expense in 2009. The first six months of 2008 included \$24.4 million of expense related to the step-up in inventory basis to fair value, partially offset by a favorable \$10.7 million mark-to-market adjustment for an interest rate swap.

INTEREST EXPENSE, INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND EQUITY IN NET EARNINGS OF AFFILIATES

Interest Expense

Interest Expense was \$104.9 million and \$100.3 million in the first six months of 2009 and 2008, respectively. The increase in Interest Expense was due to the additional debt acquired as part of the Altivity Transaction, but was partially offset by the lower interest rates on the unhedged portion of the Company's debt year over year. As of June 30, 2009, approximately 13% of the Company's total debt was subject to floating interest rates.

Income Tax Expense

During the first six months of 2009, the Company recognized Income Tax Expense of \$19.4 million on Income before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Earnings of Affiliates of \$10.3 million. During the first six months of 2008, the Company recognized Income Tax Expense of \$16.0 million on Loss before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Earnings of Affiliates of \$12.4 million. Income Tax Expense for the first six months of 2009 and 2008 was primarily due to the noncash expense of \$15.9 million and \$13.6 million, respectively, associated with the amortization of goodwill for tax purposes. The Company has approximately \$1.4 billion of net operating loss carryforwards for U.S. federal income tax purposes, which may be used to offset taxable income.

Equity in Net Earnings of Affiliates

Equity in Net Earnings of Affiliates was \$0.5 million and \$0.8 million in the first six months of 2009 and 2008, respectively, and is related to the Company's equity investment in the joint venture Rengo Riverwood Packaging, Ltd.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company broadly defines liquidity as its ability to generate sufficient funds from both internal and external sources to meet its obligations and commitments. In addition, liquidity includes the ability to obtain appropriate debt and equity financing and to convert into cash those assets that are no longer required to meet existing strategic and financial objectives. Therefore, liquidity cannot be considered separately from capital resources that consist of current or potentially available funds for use in achieving long-range business objectives and meeting debt service commitments.

Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities in the first six months of 2009 totaled \$174.1 million, compared to \$16.0 million in the first six months of 2008. The increase was primarily due to the alternative fuel tax credit, improved working capital primarily as a result of lower inventory levels, lower pension contributions of \$17.0 million, and higher net income when adjusted for noncash items such as depreciation and amortization, and in 2008, the \$24.4 million inventory step-up related to Altivity, partially offset by the \$10.7 million favorable mark-to-market adjustment for an interest rate swap in the prior year period.

Net cash used in investing activities in the first six months of 2009 totaled \$57.3 million, compared to \$54.5 million in the first six months of 2008. This increase was due primarily to the Altivity Transaction in which the Company acquired \$60.2 million of cash, which was partially offset by \$29.8 million in acquisition costs in 2008. This was offset by lower capital spending and proceeds from sales of assets.

Net cash used in financing activities in 2009 totaled \$126.3 million, compared to \$44.5 million provided by financing activities in the first six months of 2008. This change was primarily due to the repayment of funds borrowed under the Company's revolving credit facilities in 2008 when the credit and securities markets were more volatile and the Company felt it necessary to maintain sufficient cash to meet any foreseeable liquidity needs.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company's liquidity needs arise primarily from debt service on its substantial indebtedness and from the funding of its capital expenditures, ongoing operating costs and working capital. Principal and interest payments under the term loan facility and the revolving credit facility, together with principal and interest payments on the Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes (the "Notes"), represent significant liquidity requirements for the Company. Based upon current levels of operations, anticipated cost-savings and expectations as to future growth, the Company believes that cash generated from operations, together with amounts available under its revolving credit facility and other available financing sources, will be adequate to permit the Company to meet its

debt service obligations, necessary capital expenditure program requirements, ongoing operating costs and working capital needs, although no assurance can be given in this regard. The Company's future financial and operating performance, ability to service or refinance its debt and ability to comply with the covenants and restrictions contained in its debt agreements (see "Covenant Restrictions") will be subject to future economic conditions, including conditions in the credit markets, and to financial, business and other factors, many of which are beyond the Company's control, and will be substantially dependent on the selling prices and demand for the Company's products, raw material and energy costs, and the Company's ability to successfully implement its overall business and profitability strategies.

Covenant Restrictions

The Credit Agreement and the indentures governing the Notes limit the Company's ability to incur additional indebtedness. Additional covenants contained in the Credit Agreement, among other things, restrict the ability of the Company to dispose of assets, incur guarantee obligations, prepay other indebtedness, make dividends and other restricted payments, create liens, make equity or debt investments, make acquisitions, modify terms of the indentures under which the Notes are issued, engage in mergers or consolidations, change the business conducted by the Company and its subsidiaries, and engage in certain transactions with affiliates. Such restrictions, together with the highly leveraged nature of the Company and disruptions in the credit market, could limit the Company's ability to respond to changing market conditions, fund its capital spending program, provide for unexpected capital investments or take advantage of business opportunities.

Under the terms of the Credit Agreement, the Company must comply with a maximum consolidated secured leverage ratio, which is defined as the ratio of: (a) total long-term and short-term indebtedness of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States ("U.S. GAAP"), plus the aggregate cash proceeds received by the Company and its subsidiaries from any receivables or other securitization but excluding therefrom (i) all unsecured indebtedness, (ii) all subordinated indebtedness permitted to be incurred under the Credit Agreement, and (iii) all secured indebtedness of foreign subsidiaries to (b) Adjusted EBITDA, which we refer to as Credit Agreement EBITDA(1). Pursuant to this financial covenant, the Company must maintain a maximum consolidated secured leverage ratio of less than the following:

	Maximum Consolidated Secured
	Leverage Ratio(1)
October 1, 2008 — September 30, 2009	5.00 to 1.00
October 1, 2009 and thereafter	4.75 to 1.00

Note:

(1) Credit Agreement EBITDA is defined in the Credit Agreement as consolidated net income before consolidated net interest expense, non-cash expenses and charges, total income tax expense, depreciation expense, expense associated with amortization of intangibles and other assets, non-cash provisions for reserves for discontinued operations, extraordinary, unusual or non-recurring gains or losses or charges or credits, gain or loss associated with sale or write-down of assets not in the ordinary course of business, any income or loss accounted for by the equity method of accounting, and projected run rate cost savings, prior to or within a twelve month period.

At June 30, 2009, the Company was in compliance with the financial covenant in the Credit Agreement and the ratio was as follows:

Consolidated Secured Leverage Ratio - 3.63 to 1.00

The Company's management believes that presentation of the consolidated secured leverage ratio and Credit Agreement EBITDA herein provides useful information to investors because borrowings under the Credit Agreement are a key source of the Company's liquidity, and the Company's ability to borrow under the Credit Agreement is dependent on, among other things, its compliance with the financial ratio covenant. Any failure by the Company to comply with this financial covenant could result in an event of default, absent a waiver or amendment from the lenders under such agreement, in which case the lenders may be entitled to declare all amounts owed to be due and payable immediately.

Credit Agreement EBITDA is a financial measure not calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and is not a measure of net income, operating income, operating performance or liquidity presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Credit Agreement EBITDA should be considered in addition to results prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP, but should not be considered a substitute for or superior to

U.S. GAAP results. In addition, Credit Agreement EBITDA may not be comparable to EBITDA or similarly titled measures utilized by other companies because other companies may not calculate Credit Agreement EBITDA in the same manner as the Company does.

The calculations of the components of the maximum consolidated secured leverage ratio for and as of the period ended June 30, 2009 are listed below:

In millions	 Months Ended e 30, 2009
Pro Forma Net Loss	\$ (80.7)
Income Tax Expense	37.8
Interest Expense, Net	220.3
Depreciation and Amortization	298.4
Dividends Received, Net of Earnings of Equity Affiliates	0.6
Non-Cash Provisions for Reserves for Discontinued Operations	1.3
Other Non-Cash Charges	40.8
Merger Related Expenses	45.3
Gains/Losses Associated with Sale/Write-Down of Assets	33.8
Other Non-Recurring/Extraordinary/Unusual Items	(46.7)
Projected Run Rate Cost Savings (a)	55.1
Credit Agreement EBITDA	\$ 606.0

In millions	As of June 30, 2009
Short-Term Debt	\$ 27.6
Long-Term Debt	3,040.7
Total Debt	\$ 3,068.3
Less Adjustments (b)	869.4
Consolidated Secured Indebtedness	\$ 2,198.9

Note:

- (a) As defined by the Credit Agreement, this represents projected cost savings expected by the Company to be realized as a result of specific actions taken or expected to be taken prior to or within twelve months of the period in which Credit Agreement EBITDA is to be calculated, net of the amount of actual benefits realized or expected to be realized from such actions.
 - The terms of the Credit Agreement limit the amount of projected run rate cost savings that may be used in calculating Credit Agreement EBITDA by stipulating that such amount may not exceed the lesser of (i) ten percent of EBITDA as defined in the Credit Agreement for the last twelve-month period (before giving effect to projected run rate cost savings) or (ii) \$100 million.
 - As a result, in calculating Credit Agreement EBITDA above, the Company used projected run rate cost savings of \$55.1 million, or ten percent of EBITDA, as calculated in accordance with the Credit Agreement, which amount is lower than total projected cost savings identified by the Company, net of actual benefits realized for the twelve month period ended June 30, 2009. Projected run rate cost savings were calculated by the Company solely for its use in calculating Credit Agreement EBITDA for purposes of determining compliance with the maximum consolidated secured leverage ratio contained in the Credit Agreement and should not be used for any other purpose.
- (b) Represents consolidated indebtedness/securitization that is either (i) unsecured, or (ii) Permitted Subordinated Indebtedness as defined in the Credit Agreement, or secured indebtedness permitted to be incurred by the Company's foreign subsidiaries per the Credit Agreement.

If the negative impact of inflationary pressures on key inputs continues, or depressed selling prices, lower sales volumes, increased operating costs or other factors have a negative impact on the Company's ability to increase its profitability, the Company may not be able to maintain its compliance with the financial covenant in its Credit Agreement. The Company's ability to comply in future periods with the financial covenant in the Credit Agreement will depend on its ongoing financial and operating performance, which in turn will be subject to economic conditions and to financial, business and other factors, many of which are beyond the Company's control, and will be substantially dependent on the selling prices for the Company's products, raw material and energy costs, and the Company's ability to successfully implement its overall business strategies and meet its profitability objective. If a violation of the financial covenant or any of the other covenants occurred, the Company would attempt to obtain a waiver or an amendment from its

lenders, although no assurance can be given that the Company would be successful in this regard. The Credit Agreement and the indentures governing the Notes have certain cross-default or cross-acceleration provisions; failure to comply with these covenants in any agreement could result in a violation of such agreement which could, in turn, lead to violations of other agreements pursuant to such cross-default or cross-acceleration provisions. If an event of default occurs, the lenders are entitled to declare all amounts owed to be due and payable immediately. The Credit Agreement is collateralized by substantially all of the Company's domestic assets.

Capital Investment

The Company's capital investment in the first six months of 2009 was \$66.4 million compared to \$83.3 million (including \$21.7 million for Altivity) in the first six months of 2008. During the first six months of 2009, the Company had capital spending of \$50.4 million for improving process capabilities, \$10.6 million for capital spares, \$5.2 million for manufacturing packaging machinery and \$0.2 million for compliance with environmental laws and regulations.

Goodwill

During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, the Company concluded that an interim goodwill impairment analysis was not required as there were no events or changes in circumstances that would suggest that the fair value of a reporting unit would no longer exceed its carrying amount. The Company sold a facility within the multi-wall bag segment during the second quarter 2009 and determined that the remaining goodwill was not impaired.

The Company could be adversely impacted by certain of the risks discussed in "Risk Factors" in Item 1A. in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 and thus could incur future goodwill impairment charges.

Environmental Matters

Some of the Company's current and former facilities are the subject of environmental investigations and remediations resulting from historical operations and the release of hazardous substances or other constituents. Some current and former facilities have a history of industrial usage for which investigation and remediation obligations may be imposed in the future or for which indemnification claims may be asserted against the Company. Also, potential future closures or sales of facilities may necessitate further investigation and may result in future remediation at those facilities. The Company has established reserves for those facilities or issues where liability is probable and the costs are reasonably estimable.

For further discussion of the Company's environmental matters, see Note 10 in Part I, Item 1, Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of net sales and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates, and changes in these estimates are recorded when known. The critical accounting policies used by management in the preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements are those that are important both to the presentation of the Company's financial condition and results of operations and require significant judgments by management with regard to estimates used.

The Company's most critical accounting policies which require significant judgment or involve complex estimations are described in GPHC's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

For a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements impacting the Company, see Note 1 in Part I, Item 1, Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Company believes that the deflation it has experienced with certain input costs in the first six months of 2009 will benefit results in 2009. The Company expects to realize approximately \$110 million in year over year operating cost savings from its continuous improvement programs, including Lean Sigma manufacturing projects and synergies. In addition, contractual price escalators and price increases in 2008 for coated board and cartons should favorably impact 2009.

Total capital investment for 2009 is expected to be approximately \$150 million and is expected to relate principally to the Company's process capability improvements and maintaining compliance with environmental laws and regulations (approximately \$122 million), acquiring capital spares (approximately \$18 million), and producing packaging machinery (approximately \$10 million).

The Company also expects the following in 2009:

- Depreciation and amortization between \$300 million and \$320 million.
- Interest expense of \$220 million to \$230 million, including \$8.7 million of noncash interest expense associated with amortization of debt issuance costs and the original issuance discount.
- Debt reduction of approximately \$200 million.
- Pension plan contributions of \$60 million to \$70 million.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

For a discussion of certain market risks related to the Company, see Part II, Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk", in GPHC's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. There have been no significant developments with respect to derivatives or exposure to market risk during the first six months of 2009. For a discussion of the Company's Financial Instruments, Derivatives and Hedging Activities, see Note 10 in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in GPHC's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources."

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company's management has carried out an evaluation, with the participation of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based upon such evaluation, management has concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2009.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2009 that has materially affected, or is likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

PART II — OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is a party to a number of lawsuits arising in the ordinary conduct of its business. Although the timing and outcome of these lawsuits cannot be predicted with certainty, the Company does not believe that disposition of these lawsuits will have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. For more information see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Environmental Matters."

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in GPHC's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

At the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on May 13, 2009, the stockholders elected the following nominees to the Board of Directors to serve a three-year term. The votes cast were as follows:

DIRECTOR	FOR	WITHHELD
Jeffrey Liaw	300,551,324	23,921,788
Michael G. MacDougall	294,983,666	29,489,446
John R. Miller	316.187.938	8.285.174

The terms of Messrs. G. Andrea Botta, Kevin J. Conway, Jeffrey H. Coors, Kelvin L. Davis, David W. Scheible, George V. Bayly, Matthew J. Espe, Harold R. Logan, Jr. and Robert W. Tieken continued after the Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the stockholders also approved (i) an amendment to the Graphic Packaging Corporation 2004 Stock and Incentive Plan to (a) increase the number of shares of the Company's common stock that may be granted pursuant to awards by 12.0 million shares; (b) to reapprove and add to a list of qualified business criteria for performance-based awards; and (c) to make other conforming changes; and (ii) approve an amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Graphic Packaging Holding Company that would permit its Board of Directors to implement, at its discretion, a reverse stock split of the common stock at any time prior to the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The votes cast were as follows:

PROPOSAL	FOR	AGAINST	ABSTAIN	BROKER NON-VOTES
Amend the Graphic Packaging Corporation 2004 Stock and Incentive				_
Compensation Plan	305,721,039	2,323,815	16,072	16,412,186
Amend the Restated Certificate of Incorporation	321,233,257	3,185,943	53,911	_

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

a) Exhibit Index

Exhibit Number	Description
10.1	Supply Agreement between Graphic Packaging International, Inc. and Sun Chemical Corporation dated June 1, 2009. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. Omitted portions have been filed separately with the U.S. Securities Exchange Commission.
31.1	Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a).
31.2	Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a).
32.1	Certification required by Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.
32.2	Certification required by Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code.
	34

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GRAPHIC PACKAGING HOLDING COMPANY (Registrant)

/s/ STEPHEN A. HELLRUNG Stephen A. Hellrung	Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary	August 5, 2009
/s/ DANIEL J. BLOUNT Daniel J. Blount	Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)	August 5, 2009
/s/ DEBORAH R. FRANK Deborah R. Frank	Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)	August 5, 2009

SUPPLY AGREEMENT

THIS SUPPLY AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made and entered into as of June 1, 2009 (the "Effective Date"), by and between Sun Chemical Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and its affiliates ("Sun"), and Graphic Packaging International, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("GPI").

Background

Sun and GPI have entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement dated May 20, 2009 (the "<u>Asset Purchase Agreement</u>") pursuant to which Sun has agreed to buy certain of the assets of certain of GPI's subsidiaries engaged in the manufacture, marketing and supply of certain printing inks, artists inks, coatings, varnishes and alkyds (the "<u>Business</u>") to internal and third-party customers (the "<u>Asset Purchase</u>"). In connection with the Asset Purchase, Sun desires to sell and GPI desires to purchase certain ink and related products (as defined below) on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

Agreement

In consideration of the mutual representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Product Supply.

A. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, GPI agrees to purchase, and Sun agrees to supply the products set forth in Appendix A attached hereto (the "Products") for any combination of GPI's facilities in North America, for the term of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, GPI shall not be obligated to purchase any particular Product until such product has been qualified for supply to GPI, which qualification GPI shall determine in accordance with GPI's policies and practices (such qualified Product is referred to herein as "Qualified Product") provided that such failure to qualify is solely attributable to the fault of Sun. It is agreed and understood by the parties that GPI shall use reasonable commercial efforts to facilitate and effect timely and prompt qualification of the Products at each of its facilities having requirements for such Products and to cooperate with Sun as reasonably required to achieve such prompt qualification of Products.

B. GPI may also purchase, and Sun may sell, such other items (<u>'Additional Products'</u>) as may be mutually agreed upon by the Parties pursuant to mutually satisfactory terms and conditions; provided that any purchases by GPI of such Additional Products from Sun will be deemed to count toward the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount, the Minimum Annual Purchase Amount, the purchase thresholds necessary to achieve a specified rebate rate or percentage and the purchase volumes eligible for rebates.

2. Term.

A. The term of this Agreement ("Term") shall begin as of the Effective Date and shall expire on June 30, 2017 unless earlier terminated automatically or by one of the parties as provided by the terms of this Agreement. It is the desire of the Parties to make the Agreement anniversary

date fall on July 1 of each year of the Term so as to coincide with the start of the third calendar quarter of each year; thus, the initial year of this Agreement will begin on the Effective Date and will terminate on June 30, 2010 so that the successive terms thereafter will run from July 1 to June 30 for the seven years after the initial year, with the period commencing on the Effective Date and terminating on June 30, 2010, and each of the seven twelve-month periods commencing on July 1 thereafter during the Term referred to herein as a "Contract Year".

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if GPI has not purchased the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount over the Term, unless terminated early pursuant to Section(s) 20 below, then the Term shall be extended through and until such time as GPI's purchases of Qualified Products and Additional Products equals or exceeds the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount. The "Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount" means, initially, the aggregate amount paid to Sun by GPI for purchases of Qualified Products and Additional Products hereunder equal to \$[*], exclusive of rebates, taxes, duties and other charges; provided, however, that the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount shall be updated and adjusted during the Term, as follows: At the time of every price adjustment made pursuant to Appendix B, the parties shall calculate the "Remaining Minimum Purchase Amount" by subtracting from the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount then in effect the sum of (i) the total amount of prior sales of Products and Additional Products plus (ii) the total amount of other credits against the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount per Sections 3B and 8B all as of the date of the price adjustment (all of the foregoing prior sales and credits collectively referred to herein as "Prior Purchase Credits"). A "Revised Remaining Purchase Amount" shall be calculated by multiplying the Remaining Minimum Purchase Amount by the sum of (i) the number one (1) plus the Weighted Average Price Change (as calculated pursuant to Appendix B) at the time of such price adjustment. For the avoidance of doubt, if the Weighted Average Price Change represents an overall price decrease, the Weighted Average Price Change shall be deemed to be a negative number. The new Minimum Aggregate Purchase Price shall be an amount equal to the Revised Remaining Purchase Amount plus (ii) the Prior Purchase Credits. At the time of every price adjustment, Sun shall inform GPI in writing of the new Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount.

3. Pricing, Quantity, Rebates and Audit. The consideration for GPI's execution of this Agreement in conjunction with the Asset Purchase Agreement shall be[*] (\$[*]) in cash (the "Incentive Payment"). On the date hereof, Sun shall wire to GPI, in immediately available funds to an account designated in writing by GPI, the Incentive Payment. The Incentive Payment shall be fully refunded to Sun, without interest, within fifteen (15) business days after any valid termination of the Asset Purchase Agreement. The Incentive Payment shall become nonrefundable at the time that the Asset Purchase is completed.

A. Pricing for Products as well as the mechanism for making future price adjustments shall be as set forth in Appendix B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

[*] CERTAIN INFORMATION IN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE COMMISSION. CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT HAS BEEN REQUESTED WITH RESPECT TO THE OMITTED PORTIONS.

B. In each of the first seven years of the Term, GPI will purchase from Sun at least 95% of GPI's Annual Organic Requirements for Qualified Products and in the eighth year of the Term, GPI will purchase from Sun at least 75% of GPI's Annual Organic Requirements for Qualified Products. Notwithstanding the foregoing, GPI shall purchase no less than the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount during the Term. Sun and GPI agree that GPI may purchase less than 95% of its Annual Organic Requirements for any Product that is not a Qualified Product as of the first day of the applicable contract year, provided that failure to qualify such Product is solely attributable to the fault of Sun; and further agree that, in such instance, the percentage of Annual Organic Requirements of such Product(s) qualified after the first day of the Contract Year which GPI shall be required to purchase hereunder shall be prorated based on the date on which qualification is achieved. If Sun cannot supply Qualified Product after December 31, 2009, for reasons solely attributable to the fault of Sun, and GPI makes purchases of such Product from a third party, such purchase will be deemed to count toward the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount, the Minimum Annual Purchase Amount, and the purchase thresholds necessary to achieve a specified rebate rate or percentage, but shall not be counted toward calculated purchase volumes eligible for rebates. "Annual Organic Requirements" means the annual requirements for Product that are generated by the businesses owned by GPI as of the date hereof as the same expand or contract or otherwise may be modified during the Term; provided, however, for the avoidance of doubt, Annual Organic Requirements shall not include (i) New Applications for Product in accordance with Section 12 unless such New Applications become Qualified Products; and (ii) the requirements of any business acquired by GPI from a third party (an "Acquired Business").

C. Upon Sun's request, GPI shall provide an officer's certificate to Sun within 60 days of the end of each contract year certifying as to whether the percentage of Qualified Products purchased from Sun satisfied the requirements of this provision, and Sun shall have the right, no more frequently than once per contract year and during regular business hours in a manner not disruptive to GPI's ordinary course of business, to have a mutually agreeable independent third party audit GPI's purchases to determine satisfaction of the requirements of this provision. In the event that any such audit concludes that GPI has satisfied such purchase requirements, the cost of such audit will be at Sun's expense; if not, such cost will be borne by GPI.

D. In the event of a dispute over whether the failure to qualify any Product(s) is solely attributable to the fault of Sun, or instead attributable to the failure of GPI to use commercially reasonable efforts to facilitate and effect timely and prompt qualification at any or all of its facilities, the parties shall endeavor in good faith to resolve the dispute. In the event that they are unable to do so within thirty (30) days after one party notifies the other in writing of the existence of such dispute, the parties shall retain a mutually acceptable independent third party technical advisor ("Technical Advisor") with recognized experience and expertise in the inks and printing industry to resolve the dispute. The parties shall afford Technical Advisor such access as Technical Advisor may reasonably require during regular business hours, in a manner not disruptive to the parties' ordinary course of business and under provisions of confidentiality mutually acceptable to the parties, to their facilities, personnel, processes, products, equipment and information to the extent necessary to resolve the dispute. In the event that Technical Advisor determines that a disputed failure to qualify is solely attributable to the fault of Sun. fees

and costs of Technical Advisor's services shall be borne by Sun. In the event that the Technical Advisor determines that the failure to qualify is solely attributable to the fault of GPI, fees and costs shall be born by GPI. In the event that the Technical Advisor determines that the failure to qualify is attributable to both parties, the fees and costs shall be born by the parties in the proportion of their fault as determined by the Technical Advisor. The decision of the Technical Advisor shall be final and shall be binding upon the parties.

E. GPI shall be entitled to retain a mutually agreeable independent party to audit Sun's determination of the Margin for 2008 under obligations of confidentiality satisfactory to Sun in accordance with Appendix B. In addition, GPI shall have the right, no more frequently than once per contract year and during regular business hours in a manner not disruptive to Sun's ordinary course of business, to have a mutually agreeable independent third party audit any price adjustments made by Sun under obligations of confidentiality satisfactory to Sun in accordance with this Agreement. In the event that any such audit concludes that the actual price increase should have been an amount greater than [*] or that the actual price decrease should have been an amount greater than [*] (in either case, a "Significant Overcharge"), the cost of such audit will be at Sun's expense; if not, such cost will be borne by GPI. Sun shall promptly, but in no event more than ten (10) days after the determination of any overcharge, refund to GPI any amounts overpaid by GPI with respect to any Qualified Product purchased since the date the applicable price change was implemented by Sun.

F. Except as set forth below, on or before the thirtieth day following the end of each of the first three quarters during each calendar year during the Term, Sun will pay to GPI a quarterly rebate amount in cash or credit, at the election of GPI, based on purchase volumes for Qualified Products and Additional Products during such quarter, calculated as set forth below (a "Quarterly Rebate Amount"):

Total Purchase Volumes for Quarter	Quarterly Rebate Rate
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]

^[*] CERTAIN INFORMATION IN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE COMMISSION. CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT HAS BEEN REQUESTED WITH RESPECT TO THE OMITTED PORTIONS.

No later than thirty (30) days following the expiration of each calendar year during the Term, with the exception of year 2009, Sun will pay to GPI an Annual Rebate Amount in cash or credit, at the election of GPI, based on purchase volumes for Qualified Products and Additional Products during such preceding calendar year, in an amount, if any, equal to (A) the Annual Rebate Amount (as defined below) less (B) the total of the Quarterly Rebate Amounts paid to GPI for the first three quarters of such preceding calendar year, if a positive number. If the total of the rebates paid to GPI for the first three quarters of such calendar year exceeds the Annual Rebate Amount owed to GPI for such calendar year, then GPI shall pay to Sun, within such thirty (30) day period, the amount by which the sum of the Quarterly Rebate Amounts for the first three quarters exceeds the Annual Rebate Amount earned for such calendar year or, at Sun's discretion, this amount will be deducted from the following quarterly rebate payment(s) until it is fully depleted. The Annual Rebate Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Total Purchase Volumes for Calendar Year	Annual Rebate Amount
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]

In calendar year 2017, the regular Quarterly Rebate Amounts shall be paid in the first and second quarters. If this Agreement terminates as scheduled on June 30, 2017, no Annual Rebate Amount shall be paid. If this Agreement is required to continue after June 30, 2017 in accordance with Section 20, the regular quarterly rebates and annual rebates shall continue for the remainder of the Agreement, and in any partial calendar year the Quarterly Rebate Amounts will be paid but no Annual Rebate Amount shall be paid.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, Quarterly Rebate Amounts for the third and fourth quarters of calendar year 2009 shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions of Appendix C attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

The sum of any Quarterly Rebate Amounts payable in the third and fourth quarters of calendar years 2009 is referred to herein as the **Initial Rebate Amount**."

[*] CERTAIN INFORMATION IN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE COMMISSION. CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT HAS BEEN REQUESTED WITH RESPECT TO THE OMITTED PORTIONS.

On or before January 31, 2010, Sun and GPI shall agree to the total volume of Qualified Product and Additional Products purchased by GPI during the calendar year 2009, whether or not such Qualified Products or Additional Products were purchased pursuant to this Agreement, and Sun shall pay to GPI an amount, if any, equal to (A) the 2009 Rebate Amount (as defined below) less (B) the Initial Rebate Amount. The 2009 Rebate Amount shall be calculated as follows:

Total Purchase Volumes for 2009	2009 Rebate Amount
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]
[*]	[*]

- G. Unless otherwise specified herein, rebates, payments for purchases hereunder and any other payments owed by one party to another hereunder may be made by ACH transfer to an account designated in writing by the party receiving such payment.
- 4. Payment Terms. Payment terms are net 60 days. Interest at the rate of 1% per month will be charged on all past due amounts up to thirty (30) days past due, and at the rate of 2% per month on all amounts past due longer than thirty (30) days. Sun agrees all payment terms are dependent on accurately invoicing GPI. As such, payment terms begin upon receipt of an accurate invoice by GPI from Sun. If an invoice is incomplete or inaccurate, GPI will pay all undisputed amounts within terms according to the original invoice date, but will not be held in default for non-payment of disputed items until the dispute has been resolved and any inaccurate or incomplete invoices have been corrected by Sun. Products provided on a consignment basis shall be billed monthly once the container is opened.
- 5. Shipment and Delivery. Subject to Section 16, Sun agrees to deliver Qualified Products on or prior to the agreed-upon delivery dates and if any shipment or delivery is made which is not in all material respects in accord with this Agreement (including time of shipment or delivery), GPI reserves the right to reject such delivery without liability to Sun, and, in the absence of an event
- [*] CERTAIN INFORMATION IN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE COMMISSION. CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT HAS BEEN REQUESTED WITH RESPECT TO THE OMITTED PORTIONS.

of force majeure such rejected volumes shall be included in calculating GPI's rebate percentages, but not purchase volumes eligible for rebates. Sun will ship the Products in a manner consistent with general industry practice so as to minimize any damage while in transit. GPI is not responsible for any charge for packing, boxing, storage or cartage.

6. Passage of Title.

A. Unless otherwise specifically agreed to by the parties, all Qualified Product will be purchased on consignment. With respect to Product sold by consignment, Sun agrees to deliver to GPI's facility or facilities and GPI agrees to accept Products. Sun will remain the owner of the Products until said Products are purchased by GPI pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Either the actual use of the Product or its removal from the Storage Area (defined hereinafter), as applicable, shall be deemed the time of purchase of such Product under this Agreement. GPI shall receive and accept delivery of the Products, and safely store them as Sun's property at Buyer's applicable place of business (the "Premises"), so as to reasonably protect the Products from loss, damage or deterioration. All such Products shall prominently bear Sun's name and shall be conspicuously marked and identified as being the property of Sun. GPI shall designate a storage area ("Storage Area") on the Premises solely for storage of Sun's Products in the Storage Area located at the Premises shall be physically segregated from and not commingled either with GPI's inventory or other property or with the property of any other person, and GPI agrees to execute such financing statements and other documents as Sun may reasonably require to perfect Sun's security interest in, and to give notice of and confirm it's ownership of, the Products to which Sun retains title.

- B. With respect to any Qualified Product not sold by consignment, title to all items sold to GPI hereunder shall pass to GPI upon delivery of same by Sun to GPI DDU designated GPI converting facility (Incoterms 2000). All risk of loss or damage to said items prior to such delivery shall fall upon Sun, and Sun shall defend and hold GPI harmless against any claims asserted against GPI on account of any personal injury or property damages caused by any transported materials, or by the transportation thereof, prior to the completion of unloading at GPI's plant.
- 7. Material Specifications. All Qualified Products sold by Sun to GPI will comply with the material specifications attached hereto as Appendix D and incorporated herein by reference ("Specifications").

8. Inspection; Non-Conforming Goods.

A. GPI shall have the right, but not the obligation, to inspect at any location and at any time all Qualified Products, and to reject that which does not conform to Specifications, or if not so specified, which do not conform to standard industry specifications ("Non-Conforming Goods"). GPI may make returns of Non-Conforming Goods to Sun at Sun's expense and may purchase replacement goods from third parties in accordance with Section 8B. No such inspection by GPI shall in any manner affect any of the warranties of Sun or constitute a waiver of any of GPI's rights hereunder or otherwise, and all items are subject to GPI's inspection and right to reject notwithstanding prior payment.

B. Upon determining that any Qualified Product supplied hereunder constitutes Non-Conforming Goods, GPI shall notify Sun and may contact third-party suppliers with respect to their ability to supply replacement Products meeting the Specifications ("Replacement Products"). GPI may obtain Replacement Products from Sun or a third-party supplier, whichever GPI in its sole discretion determines is able to deliver such Replacement Products in the shortest amount of time. Replacement Products supplied by Sun shall be supplied at Sun's sole cost and expense. For Replacement Products supplied by a third party, (i) GPI shall receive a credit in the amount paid to Sun for such Non-Conforming Product, if applicable; and (ii) purchases of Replacement Products from third parties shall be treated as if purchased from Sun for the purpose of calculating the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount, Minimum Annual Purchase Amount, and Quarterly Rebate threshold. GPI shall continue to count Replacement Product toward the calculations of the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount, Minimum Annual Purchase Amount and Quarterly Rebate threshold (but not volumes eligible for rebates) until Sun can produce Qualified Product once again.

C. Sun acknowledges that it will provide GPI with thirty (30) days notice before making changes in raw materials or processes used by Sun in the manufacture of any Product or Additional Product to the extent required by, and pursuant to the terms of, the Management of Change Process attached hereto as Appendix E. Regardless of whether notice is required under the Management of Change Process, Sun agrees to maintain a log of all raw material or process changes made by Sun in the manufacture of any Product or Additional Product, which log may be consulted by GPI upon GPI's request.

- 9. Business and Technical Support/In-Plant Technicians/Testing. In partial consideration of GPI's commitment hereunder, Sun shall provide the following services at no additional cost to GPI:
 - (a) The services of a dedicated business manager, as more specifically described in Appendix F, attached hereto.
 - (b) The services of technical support, Black Belt and Color Manager personnel, as more specifically described in Appendix G, attached hereto.
 - (c) Quarterly testing of inks as required by GPI. Original testing will be performed by Nancy Plowman and Associates. Future testing may be revised upon mutual consent of both parties.
 - (d) Additional support services currently provided by the Handschy business as set forth in Appendix H.

GPI shall provide, at no charge, a safe and appropriate area close to the pressroom, including desk, file cabinets, work table, telephone and such other amenities as Sun may reasonably request to enable it to provide its in-plant services. GPI will also provide, at no charge, heat, light, power and other services for Sun's in-plant services.

10. Equipment. In partial consideration of GPI's commitment hereunder, Sun shall provide and maintain all in-plant equipment necessary to perform its obligations hereunder, as set forth in Appendix I. Ownership of such equipment will remain with Sun, and such equipment will be labeled "property of Sun Chemical." GPI agrees to execute such financing statements and other

documents as Sun may reasonably require to perfect Sun's security interest in, and to give notice of and confirm it's ownership of, the Equipment to which Sun retains title.

11. Profit Sharing Productivity Program GPI and Sun agree that they shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to implement a profit sharing productivity program and to allocate the cost-savings realized from such program in the form and as set forth in detail on Appendix J, attached hereto.

12. New Technology

A. Sun will, to the extent that it is legally free to do so, provide GPI with prompt notice on any new developmental breakthroughs developed by Sun and ready for commercial use concerning the Products ("New Technology"), under such terms of confidentiality as may be required by Sun, in its sole discretion. In addition, Sun will provide a technology innovation presentation twice a year during the Term which outlines, on a confidential basis, its ink development programs concerning the Products. For any New Technology that GPI wishes to pursue with Sun, Sun and GPI will use reasonable commercial efforts to qualify products embodying New Technology as Qualified Products to be supplied to GPI pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. In addition, where Sun is legally free to do so, the parties agree to negotiate in good faith mutually satisfactory agreements pursuant to which Sun would supply the New Technology exclusively to GPI, and not to any other customer of Sun, for a period of time to be determined by the parties.

B. GPI will provide to Sun, on a confidential basis, the opportunity to supply all Product developments for New Applications. A "New Application" means, with respect to any product: (i) an ink or coating that allows for a new performance enhancement (e.g., gloss, metallic) or application (e.g., coating that provides barrier) that is not commercial as of the signing of this Agreement; or (ii) a new ink or coating that allows production of an existing capability with a new process (e.g., HTL labels run flexo); provided, however, for the avoidance of doubt, New Applications for Product shall not be considered part of GPI's Annual Organic Requirements unless such New Applications are, upon mutual agreement of the parties,, qualified for such New Applications following which they will be deemed "Qualified Products" with respect to such New Applications. If not so qualified, they will be deemed "Additional Products", as defined above. GPI will use Sun as the vendor of choice for New Applications of Product so long as the pricing and performance of the Product in the New Application is competitive; if not competitive, GPI shall have the right to source the Product for the New Application outside of this Agreement without penalty.

13. Indemnity.

A. Sun shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless GPI, its employees, agents, servants, successors and assigns from and against any and all losses, damages, injuries, claims, demands, expenses, including legal fees and expenses, of whatever nature, arising out of the performance by Sun of its obligations hereunder, or arising out of the performance of the services provided by or on behalf of Sun for GPI hereunder resulting in injuries to or death of any person or persons or damage to any property occasioned by acts or omissions of Sun, its officers, employees, agents

or subcontractors, except to the extent due to the negligent or intentional acts of GPI or its personnel.

- B. GPI shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless Sun, its employees, agents, servants, successors and assigns from and against any and all losses, damages, injuries, claims, demands, expenses, including legal fees and expenses, of whatever nature, resulting from injuries to or death of any Sun in-plant personnel at GPI's facilities or locations resulting from the negligence or willful misconduct of GPI.
- C. Sun shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless GPI, its employees, agents, servants, successors and assigns from all costs, expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, damages or claims arising out of infringement or claim of infringement of any patent rights, trademark, trademark or copyright based on the sale, purchase or use of the items covered by this Agreement. Sun further agrees that in the event of any such claim, and if required by GPI, Sun shall at its expense and at no cost to GPI do one of the following:
 - (i) Procure for GPI the right of license to use and continue to use said items; or
 - (ii) Replace said items with non-infringing items and/or services of like or superior kind, productivity, efficiency, quality and value; or
 - (iii) Modify said items so as to become non-infringing. Should the items be modified, as provided herein, such modification shall not reduce the usefulness or productivity of same.

14. Limited Warranty/Limitation on Liability.

A. Sun expressly warrants that title to all items sold to GPI under this Agreement will pass to GPI free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances and that no materials, equipment or supplies incorporated into any items sold to GPI hereunder will have been acquired by Sun subject to an agreement under which any interest therein or any encumbrance thereon is retained by Sun which will survive delivery to GPI.

B. Sun expressly warrants that the Products sold hereunder shall conform to the Specifications and shall be free from defects in materials or workmanship. Equipment supplied pursuant to Section 10 of this Agreement is provided subject to the manufacturer's standard warranty. SUN HEREBY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE. IN THE EVENT OF FAILURE OF ANY PRODUCT TO CONFORM TO THE WARRANTY PROVIDED HEREIN, SUN'S SOLE OBLIGATION, AND GPI'S RIGHT, SHALL BE FOR SUN TO REPLACE SUCH NON-CONFORMING PRODUCT OR REFUND THE PURCHASE PRICE. IN ADDITION, SUN WILL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS GPI FOR DAMAGES DIRECTLY SUSTAINED OR INCURRED BY GPI RESULTING FROM A BREACH OF THE WARRANTY PROVIDED HEREUNDER, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION COSTS OF RE-WORK, DISPOSAL, RAW MATERIALS AND LABOR. IN NO EVENT SHALL SUN BE LIABLE TO GPI FOR ANY OTHER CLAIMS (EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN SECTION 13, ABOVE), REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, OR

FOR ANY OTHER DAMAGES WHETHER INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOST PROFITS, WHETHER FORESEEABLE OR NOT, EVEN IF SUN HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

15. Independent Contractor. Sun agrees that in the performance of this Agreement, Sun shall act as an independent Contractor and all of its agents, and employees, and agents and employees of its subcontractors, shall be subject solely to the control, supervision and authority of Sun.

16. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for delay in its performance of its obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement due to causes beyond its control such as, but not limited to, war, embargo, national emergency, insurrection or riots, acts of the public enemy, fire, flood or other natural disaster, (a "Period of Disability") provided that said party has taken reasonable measures to notify the other, in writing, of the delay or anticipated delay. Failure of subcontractors and inability to obtain materials shall not be considered a Period of Disability for purposes of this clause. If, due to a Period of Disability, Sun should be unable to meet all of its delivery commitments for items ordered hereunder as they become due, Sun shall not discriminate against GPI or in favor of any other customer in making deliveries of such items. If GPI believes that the Period of Disability or anticipated Period of Disability as notified in writing by Sun may impair its ability to meet its production schedules or may otherwise interfere with its operation, GPI may at its option and without liability to Sun, cancel outstanding deliveries or future orders hereunder wholly or in part during the Period of Disability; any purchases made by GPI from alternative providers during any Period of Disability of Sun shall nevertheless be credited towards GPI's annual volume purchasing with Sun for the sole purpose of determining rebate rate (but not sales volume eligible for rebate), with appropriate documentation of the purchases from GPI. If Sun's Period of Disability lasts beyond 60 days, or if Sun notifies GPI that it anticipates the Period of Disability to last beyond 60 days, GPI may, at its option, cancel all or a portion of this Agreement in writing without liability to Sun.

17. Compliance with Law. A. GPI hereby notifies Sun that, if covered, Sun has an obligation to develop and maintain an affirmative action program in compliance with EO 1246, as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Vietnam Era Readjustment Act of 1974. Sun represents to GPI that, if covered, it is in compliance with EO 11246, as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and the Vietnam Era Readjustment Act of 1974. The mandatory clauses required under those laws, being set forth in 41 CFR 60-1.4(a), 41 CFR 60-250.4(a). 41 CFR 60-741.4(a) are incorporated herein by reference.

B. Sun (1) is required to meet the filing requirements of 41 CFR 60-1.7(a) and 41 CFR 61-250.11, if applicable, (2) hereby certifies that it currently observes and will hereafter observe all requirements pertaining to non-segregated facilities set out in 41 CFR 60-1.8(b), (3) will list, to the extent legally required, all suitable employment openings with the appropriate state employment service pursuant to 41 CFR 60-250.5(d), and (4) will make and/or retain all records required by state and federal laws.

C. Sun currently observes and will continue to observe the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988.

- D. Sun will comply with all provisions of the OSHA Hazard Communication Standard (20) CFR 1910.1200, et seq.) including Sun's obligation to furnish any applicable material safety data sheets, together with appropriate labels and employee training and instruction materials.
- E. Sun will comply with requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended, and all applicable United States Department of Labor Regulations promulgated thereunder or otherwise dealing with wages and hours of work, and shall certify at time of delivery said compliance.
- F. Sun shall not, under any circumstances, in connection with the work to be performed hereunder, cause or permit the discharge, emission, release, storage, disposal or transportation of any pollutant, hazardous contaminant, toxic or other substance in violation of any applicable laws, rules or regulations which are now or hereafter promulgated by Federal, state, or local authorities.
- G. Sun further agrees to comply with any and all applicable federal, state and local laws, orders and regulations not specifically referenced herein.
- 18. Sales and/or Use Taxes Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, GPI shall bear the cost of any taxes, levies, or fees of any kind, nature or description whatsoever applicable to the sale of any Products sold by Sun to GPI, and GPI shall forthwith pay to Sun all such sums upon demand, unless GPI shall provide Sun, at the time of the submission of its orders to Sun, with tax exemption certificates or permits acceptable to the appropriate taxing authorities. Sun, as a contractor, will pay and be solely responsible for any and all sales and/or use taxes on all materials, supplies and equipment used in the performance of Sun's obligations under this Agreement, all in accordance with applicable law.
- 19. Insurance. If any of Sun's employees, subcontractors, or agents will be present on GPI's premises at any time in order to perform under this Agreement, Sun shall ensure that it, its subcontractors and/or agents have procured and maintain insurance as required by GPI. GPI's insurance requirements are attached hereto as Appendix K. In exchange for the waiver of subrogation given by Sun to GPI in Appendix K regarding workers compensation claims, GPI will grant to Sun an equivalent waiver of subrogation on such claims.

20. Termination.

- A. Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving written notice in the event the other party ceases or threatens to cease to carry on its business.
- B. In addition, either party may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of a material default or breach by the other party in the prompt performance of any obligation undertaken by it hereunder which is capable of being cured and is not cured within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of notice thereof; provided that neither the contesting in good faith the quality or the effectiveness of the Product nor the withholding of amounts claimed to be owed hereunder in connection with a good faith dispute concerning such Product as provided in Section 4, above, shall be considered a material default or breach for this purpose.

- C. Graphic may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving written notice to Sun accompanied by a termination fee in the amount of[*]. No termination fee will be payable upon a termination by Graphic after the end of the later of the seventh contract year or the purchase by GPI of the Minimum Aggregate Purchase Amount.
- D. Sun may terminate this Agreement at any time prior to thirty (30) days following the end of any contract year (other than the initial contract year) in which Graphic does not purchase (on a gross basis prior to any rebates) at least \$[*] under this Agreement (the "Minimum Annual Purchase Amount"). Upon such termination by Sun, Graphic will be required to pay to Sun within sixty (60) days of receipt of such notice by Graphic a termination fee in the amount corresponding to the period in which the termination notice is received and the termination fee payable in Section 20C above.
- E. If the Asset Purchase Agreement is terminated by either party or the Asset Purchase does not close within three (3) months of the date hereof, this Agreement shall automatically terminate and be of no further force.
- F. For avoidance of doubt, no termination fees will be payable if this Agreement is terminated by GPI pursuant to Sections 20A, 20B or 20E above.
- G. Any right of termination hereunder accruing to either party under this Section 20 shall be in addition to and not in lieu of and without prejudice to any other rights and remedies which such party may have, including the right to seek damages.
- H. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, at GPI's request, Sun will continue to supply GPI with specified Qualified Products in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement for a period of ninety (90) days following delivery of a notice of termination by Sun under Sections 20A, or 20D above.
- 21. Notices. All notices, requests, demands, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing (which shall include communications by telex and telephonic facsimile) and shall be delivered (a) in person or by courier or overnight service, (b) mailed by first class registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or (c) by facsimile transmission or pdf, as follows:

If to Sun: Sun Chemical Corporation

North American Inks Attn: Brian Leen 35 Waterview Blvd. Parsippany, NJ 07054-1285 Telephone: +1 (973) 404-6355

Facsimile: +1 (973) 404-6355 Facsimile: +1 (973) 404-6807 Email: brian.leen@sunchemical.com

[*] CERTAIN INFORMATION IN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE COMMISSION. CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT HAS BEEN REQUESTED WITH RESPECT TO THE OMITTED PORTIONS.

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Sun Chemical Corporation 35 Waterview Blvd. Parsippany, NJ 07054-1285 Attn: Legal Department Telephone: +1 (973) 404-6550 Facsimile: +1 (973) 404)-6492

Email: eric.finkelman@sunchemical.com

If to GPI: Graphic Packaging International, Inc.

Attn: General Counsel 814 Livingston Court Marietta, GA 30067 Telephone: 770-644-3000 Facsimile: 770-644-2929

with a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Alston & Bird LLP 1201 West Peachtree Street Atlanta, Georgia 30309 Attention: Christopher Rosselli Telephone: (404) 881-4945 Facsimile: (404) 881-7777 Email: chris.rosselli@alston.com

or to such other address as the parties hereto may designate in writing to the other in accordance with this Section 21. Any party may change the address to which notices are to be sent by giving written notice of such change of address to the other parties in the manner above provided for giving notice. If delivered personally or by courier, the date on which the notice, request, instruction or document is delivered shall be the date on which such delivery is made and if delivered by facsimile transmission or mail as aforesaid, the date on which such notice, request, instruction or document is received shall be the date of delivery.

22. Severability. In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be unenforceable, illegal or otherwise invalid in any respect with regard to this Agreement, such unenforceability, illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall then be construed as if such unenforceable, illegal or invalid provisions had never been contained herein.

23. Survivability. The provisions of this Agreement, which by their nature are intended to survive the termination, cancellation, completion or expiration of the Agreement, including but not limited to any expressed limitations of or releases from liability, shall continue as valid and enforceable obligations of the parties notwithstanding any such termination, cancellation, completion or expiration.

- 24. Assignment. Neither GPI nor Sun shall have the right to assign or transfer its interest or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
- 25. Waiver. Neither this Agreement, nor any provision hereof, may be amended, changed, waived, discharged, supplemented, or terminated orally, but only by an agreement in writing signed by the party against which the enforcement of such amendment, change, waiver, discharge or termination is sought. The failure or delay of any party at any time or times to require performance of any provision of this Agreement shall in no manner affect its right to enforce that provision. No single or partial waiver by any party of any condition of this Agreement, or the breach of any term of this Agreement or the inaccuracy or warranty of this Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in any one or more instances shall be construed or deemed to be a further or continuing waiver of any such condition, breach or inaccuracy or a waiver of any other condition, breach or inaccuracy.
- **26. Complete Agreement.** This Agreement, including the general terms and conditions hereof, represents the entire agreement between Sun and GPI with respect to the items sold to GPI. All prior agreements, representations, statements, negotiations, and undertakings, whether oral or written, are superseded hereby.
- 27. Governing Law. Regardless of any conflict of law or choice of law principles that might otherwise apply, the parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware. As to any dispute, claim, or litigation arising out of or relating in any way to this Agreement or the transaction at issue in this Agreement, the parties hereby agree and consent to be subject to the jurisdiction of the state or federal courts located in the State of Delaware. Each party hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, (a) any objection that it may now or hereafter have to laying venue of any suit, action or proceeding brought in such court, (b) any claim that any suit, action or proceeding brought in such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum, and (c) any defense that it may now or hereafter have based on lack of personal jurisdiction in such forum.
- 28. Fees and Expenses. Regardless of whether the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are consummated, Sun and GPI each shall pay their respective fees and expenses in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
- 29. No Third Party Beneficiaries The terms of this Agreement are for the sole benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns, and they shall not be construed as conferring any third-party beneficiary or any other rights on any other persons.
- 30. United Nations Convention Not Applicable. It is specifically agreed that this Agreement will not be covered by nor construed in accordance with the terms of the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sales of Goods.
- 31. Confidential Agreement. Each of the parties agrees that the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the information related to each party exchanged in connection with the performance of this Agreement (collectively, the "Confidential Information") shall be treated as

confidential and proprietary to each party, respectively. Accordingly, neither party shall disclose any Confidential Information to any person without the express written consent of the other party, except that each party shall be permitted to disclose Confidential Information to those of its legal counsel, advisors, representatives and employees that need to be familiar with such information in connection with such party's performance of the Agreement and who are informed of such information's confidential nature. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a party may disclose Confidential Information, if (i) in the reasonable opinion of its legal counsel the party is compelled to do so by any applicable legal requirement, including without limitation the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder; provided that such party will have afforded the other party reasonable opportunity to obtain an appropriate protective order or other satisfactory assurance of confidential treatment at such other party's expense and (ii) such party may not disclose any Confidential Information other that which it is legally compelled to disclose.

[Signatures appear on following page.]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be effective as of the date above first written.

Graphic Packaging International, Inc.

/s/ David W. Scheible
Authorized Signature
David W. Scheible
Name (Printed)
President and Chief Executive Officer
Title
June 1, 2009
Date
Sun Chemical Corporation
/s/ Brian Leen
Authorized Signature
Brian Leen
Name (Printed)
President, North American Inks
Title
June 1, 2009

[Signature page — Supply Agreement]

I, David W. Scheible certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Graphic Packaging Holding Company;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles:
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DAVID W. SCHEIBLE

David W. Scheible, President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) August 5, 2009

I, Daniel J. Blount certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Graphic Packaging Holding Company;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles:
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DANIEL J. BLOUNT

Daniel J. Blount Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) August 5, 2009

Pursuant to 18 United States Code Section 1350, As adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned hereby certifies that, to my knowledge, the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 of Graphic Packaging Holding Company (the "Company") filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ DAVID W. SCHEIBLE

Name: David W. Scheible

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

August 5, 2009

Pursuant to 18 United States Code Section 1350, As adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned hereby certifies that, to my knowledge, the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 of Graphic Packaging Holding Company (the "Company") filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ DANIEL J. BLOUNT Name: Daniel J. Blount

Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

August 5, 2009